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OFFICE OF BEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

PURCHASE OF SERVICE CONTRACT
WITH
THE METROHEALTH SYSTEM

THIS CONTRACT/AGREEMENT entered into this 1 day of July, 2011 by and between the
Cuyahoga of County, Ohio (the “County”), and The MetroHealth System, with principal offices

at 2500 MetroHealth Drive, Cleveland, Ohio 44109 (the “Provider”).

TERM

This contract will be effective from July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012 inclusive,
unless otherwise terminated or extended by formal amendment. The Agency reserves
the Tight to exercise the option, subject to the agreement of both parties, to extend the
length of this contract based upon the County's program needs, the Provider's
performance, and the availability of funds.

The Provider is aware that funding for the services under this contract will not be
continued after June 30, 2012.

The total amount of the contract cannot exceed $48,000.00 over the life of this contract.
If the amount of the invoices exceeds the amount of the contract, the Provider realizes
that no additional funds will be paid over and above the total amount of the contract,
under any circumstances, even if additional services are provided.

PURCHASE OF SERVICE

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this contract and the attached EXHIBITS
(such EXHIBITS are deemed to be a part of this contract as fully as set forth herein), the
Provider agrees to operate the Boot Camp for New Dads Program as described in
Exhibit I (Provider Program Design).

The Provider agrees to acknowledge the financial support of the County on any
publications, promotional brochures, media releases, or other publicity materials
produced with resources from this contract. This acknowledgement should be displayed
in a prominent location.

RECORDS AND REPORTING

The County reserves the right to request additional reports pertaining to the specific
program during the contract period. It is the responsibility of the Provider to furnish the
County with reports as requested. The County may exercise this right without a contract
amendment. The County reserves the right to withhold payment until such time as the
requested and/or required reports to the satisfaction of the County are received.




IV.

BILLING AND PAYMENT

Billing and Payment —~ The Provider will submit an invoice following service, with
accompanying reports to the County as outlined in the Exhibits and Aftachments. The
County will review such invoices for completeness/correctness and any information
necessary before making payment within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of an
accurate invoice. The County shall not make invoice payments for any services invoiced
later than 60 days after the end of the service month without prior County approval. The
County reserves the right to withhold payment until such time as requested and/or
required reports are received.

The Provider will indicate on their invoices, the contract number, type of service being
rendered, dates service was rendered, and the contract period. The invoice should also
show the contract amount minus the invoice amount to reflect the remaining balance on
the contract in order to obtain reimbursement.

The Provider warrants that the following unallowable costs were not included

in determining the rate of payment and that these costs will not be included in an invoice
submitted for payment. For this project, unallowable costs are: bad debt, bonding costs,
contingencies, contributions or donations, entertainment costs, costs of alcoholic
beverages, goods or services for personal use, fines, penalties and mischarging costs,
gains and losses on disposition or impairment of depreciable or capital assets, losses on
other contracts, organization costs, costs related to legal and other proceedings,
goodwill, asset valuations resulting from business combinations, and legislative
lobbying costs.

The Provider warrants that a separate General Ledger account has been established and
will be maintained for the revenue and expenses of this contracted program in
accordance with the requirements of Section IX.

MONITORING, EVALUATION, AND QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

The effectiveness of the Provider services shall be measured by the achievement of
outcomes as identified in the Statement of Work and the Program Description,
benchmarks as defined in the contract budget, and compliance with the terms and
conditions of the contract.

The County will determine the overall performance of contracted services and programs
through monthly monitoring activities.

Monitoring activities may consist of, but are not limited to:

® Reviewing required reports

° Reviewing required invoicing documentation and protocol

® Reviewing monthly activities such as referrals, enroliments and
terminations

° Quality Improvement interventions needed to address and remedy issues

discovered through the monitoring activities

Findings based on any of the aforementioned activities will be communicated to the
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Provider in writing. In the event of negative findings resulting in areas in need of
improvement or noncompliance, the Provider will respond in writing detailing an
improvement plan and/or a corrective action plan for each issue.

Failure to achieve performance goals or to comply with the terms of this contract will be
cause for or result in reduction of funding, recuperation of funds paid, or termination of
this agreement in part or in whole.

ELIGIBILITY FOR SERVICES

Eligibility of individuals to receive purchased services shall be determined, and units of
service authorized, by the County Department of Health and Human Services (HHS),
through the Fatherhood Initiative Office.

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

This contract is conditional upon the availability of federal, state, or local funds that are
appropriated or allocated for payment of this contract. If funds are not allocated and
available for the continuance of the function performed by the Provider hereunder, the
products or services directly involved in the performance of that function may be
terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are available. The
County will notify the Provider at the earliest possible time of any products or services
that will or may be affected by a shortage of funds. No penalty shall accrue to the
County in the event this provision is exercised, and the County shall not be obligated or
liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of termination under
this section.

DUPLICATE BILLING

The Provider warrants that claims made to the County for payment for services provided
shall be for actual services rendered to eligible individuals and do not duplicate claims
made by the Provider to other sources of public or private funds for the same service.

AVAILABILITY AND RETENTION OF RECORDS

All records relating to the service provided and supporting documentation for invoices
submitted to the County by the Provider shall be retained and made available by the
Provider for andit by the County, the State of Ohio (including, but not limited to,
ODJFS, the Auditor of the State of Ohio, Inspector General or duly appointed law
enforcement officials) and agencies of the United States government for a minimum of
three (3) years after payment under this contract. If an audit is initiated during this time
period, the Provider shall retain such records until the audit is concluded and all issues
resolved.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

This contract in no way precludes, prevents, or restricts the Provider from obtaining and
working under an additional contractual arrangement(s) with other parties aside from the
County, assuming that the contractual work in no way impedes the Provider's ability to

perform the services required under this contract. The Provider warrants that at the time
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of entering into this contract, it has no interest in nor shall it acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in any contract that which will impede its ability to perform the services
under this contract.

The Provider further agrees that there is no financial interest involved on the part of the
County or employees of the county involved in the development of the specifications or
the negotiation of this contract. The Provider has no knowledge of any situation that
would be a conflict of interest. It is understood that a conflict of interest occurs when
the County employee will gain financially or receive personal favors as a result of the
signing or implementation of this contract.

The Provider will report the discovery of any potential conflict of interest to the County .
Should a conflict of interest be discovered during the term of this contract, the County
may exercise any right under the contract including termination of the contract.

ASSIGNMENTS

The parties expressly agree that the contract shall not be assigned to another Provider
without the prior written approval of the County.

The Provider may not subcontract any of the services agreed to in this contract without
the express written consent of the County. All subcontracts are subject to the same
terms, conditions, and covenants contained within this contract. The Provider is
responsible for making direct payment to all subcontractors for any and all services
provided by such contractor.

GOVERNING LAW

This contract and any modifications, amendments, or alterations, shall be governed,
construed, and enforced under the laws of Ohio.

INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION

This instrument with exhibits embodies the entire contract of the parties. There are no
promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained herein; and this
contract shall supersede all previous communications, representations or contracts,
either written or oral, between the parties to this contract.

Also, this contract shall not be modified in any manner except by an instrument, in
writing, executed by the parties to this contract.

SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of this contract or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall, to any extent be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
contract or the application of such term or provision to persons or circumstances other
than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affecied thereby
and each term and provision of this contract shall be valid and enforced to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

TERMINATION
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The County may terminate this contract, for any reason, upon 30 day written notice
delivered to the Provider. The Provider may terminate this contract upon 30 day
written notice delivered to the County, subject to the following:

Provider agrees that it will be considered a material breach of this contract on
Provider’s part if Provider terminates service on this contract without cause, which is
defined as:

e The County failing to meet the terms and conditions specified in the
contract, or

e The County, through action or inaction on the County’s part,
rendering performance by the provider impossible.

The notice should be sent to the attention of the Fatherhood Coordinator at 1276 W.
3rd St., Suite 409, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. The County and the Provider shall agree
on a reasonable phase-out of the program as a condition of the termination.

The parties further agree that should the Provider become unable to provide the

services agreed to in this contract for any reason or otherwise materially breach this
contract, such service as the Provider has provided upon the date of its inability to
continue the terms of this contract shall be eligible to be billed and paid according to
the provisions of Section IV — Billing and Payment.

The parties further agree that should the Provider become unable to complete the
services requested in this contract for any reason, such work as the Provider has
completed upon the date of its inability to continue the terms of this contract shall
become the property of the County.

The County shall not be liable to pay to the Provider any further compensation after
the date of the Provider’s inability to complete the terms hereof, or the date of
termination of this agreement whichever is later, unless extended upon an agreement
of the parties. It is agreed that even if the Provider renders services for which
payments are due, that no payments will be made after the termination of this
agreement, either as a result of a default in the terms hereof or the day of termination
of the contract, unless extended by an agreement of the parties. Notwithstanding the
above, the Provider shall not be relieved of liability to the County for damages
sustained by virtue of any breach of the contract by the Provider. The County may
withhold any compensation to the Provider for the purpose of off-set until such time
as the amount of damages due the County from the Provider is agreed upon or
otherwise terminated.

COMPLIANCE

The Provider certifies that the Provider and all subcontractors who provide direct or
indirect services under this contract will comply with all requirements of federal laws
and regulations, applicable OMB circulars, state statutes and Ohio Administrative Code
rules in the conduct of work hereunder. The Provider accepts full responsibility for

payment of any and all unemployment compensation premiums, all income tax
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deductions, pension deductions, and any and all other taxes or payroll deductions
required for the performance of the work by the Provider's full time employees.

NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Provider certifies it is an equal opportunity employer and shall remain in
compliance with state and federal civil rights and nondiscrimination laws and
regulations including, but not limited to Title VI, and Title VI of the Civil Righis Act of
1964 as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans with Disabilities Act,
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, as
amended, and the Ohio Civil Rights Law.

During the performance of this contract, the Provider will not discriminate against any
employee, contract worker, or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, disability, Vietnam-era veteran status,
age, political belief or place of birth. The Provider will take affirmative action to ensure
that during employment, all employees are treated without regard to race, color, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, disability, Vietnam-era veteran status,
age, political belief or place of birth. These provisions apply also to contract workers,
Such action shall include, but is not limited to, the following: employment, upgrading,
demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff, or termination; rates
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship.

The Provider agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices stating that the Provider complies with all applicable
federal and state non-discrimination laws.

The Provider, or any person claiming through the Provider, agrees not to establish or
knowingly permit any such practice or practices of discrimination or segregation in
reference to anything relating to this contract, or in reference to any contractors or
subcontractors of said Provider.

INDEMNIFICATION

The Provider agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold the County, their officers,
employees and agents, free, clear and harmless from and against any and all losses,
penalties, damages, settlements, costs or liabilities of every kind and character arising
out of or in connection with any acts or omissions of the Provider, negligent or
otherwise, and its employees officers, agents, or independent contractors. The Provider
agrees to pay all damages, costs and expenses of the officers, agents, employees and the
County in defending any action arising out of the aforementioned acts or omissions.

RELATIONSHIP

Nothing in this contract is intended to, or shall be deemed to constitute a partnership,
association or joint venture with the Provider in the conduct of the provisions of this
contract. The Provider shall at all times have the status of an independent contractor
without the right or authority to impose tort, contractual or any other liability on the
County.

DISCLOSURE
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The Provider hereby covenants that it has disclosed any information that it possesses
about any business relationship or financial interest that said Provider has with a county
employee, employee's business, or any business relationship or financial interest that a
county employee has with the Provider or in the Provider's business.

INSURANCE

The Provider shall at times during the terms of this Contract subscribe to and comply
with the Worker’s Compensation Laws of the State of Ohio and pay such premiums as
may be required there-under, and shall save the County harmless from any and all
liability arising from or under said act. The Provider shall also furnish prior to the onset
and delivery of said services and at such other times as may be requested, a copy of the
official certificate or receipt showing the payments hereinbefore referenced.

The Provider shall further purchase and maintain during the life of this contract to cover
any loss, liability or damage alleged to have been committed by the Provider, the
Provider’s employees, agents, servants, volunteers, or assigns, Employment Practices
Liability insurance coverage, Professional Liability insurance, and Commercial General
Liability (CGL) insurance coverage, wherein the County is named as an additional
insured or co-insured, as herein specified. It is understood that said CGL coverage is to
include, but not be limited to standard provisions for sexual and physical abuse, broad
form property damage, personal injury, advertising injury., completed operations, product
liability and firm damage. Exact copies of Certificates of Liability delineating such
coverage shall be deposited with Cuyahoga County prior to commencement of services
under this Contract. The amounts of said insurance shall be as follows:

e Commercial General Liability coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 per
claim and $3,000,000 annual aggregate.

e Employment Practices Liability coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 per
claim and $1,000,000 annual aggregate.

e Professional Liability coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 per claim and
$3,000,000 annual aggregate (where applicable).

The policies for each of the requisite insurance coverage hereinabove specified shall
contain the following provision: The Provider agrees that thirty (30) days prior to
cancellation or reduction of the insurance afforded by this policy, with respect to the
Contract involved, written notice shall be mailed to the Fatherhood Initiative Office,
1276 W. 3rd St., Suite 409, Cleveland, Ohio 44113.

Cancellation of insurance will constitute a default, which if not remedied within the

stated thirty (30) day notice period shall cause immediate termination of this contract by
the County.

CONFIDENTIALITY




The Provider agrees to comply with all federal and state laws applicable to the County
and/or consumers of the County concerning the confidentiality of the County’s
consumers. The Provider understands that any access to the identities of any County
consumers shall only be as necessary for the purpose of performing its responsibilities
under this contract. The Provider agrees that the use or disclosure of information
concerning the County consumers for any purpose not directly related to the
administration of this contract is prohibited.

Client Data Confidentiality

By receiving client data in any form whatsoever from the County all parties to this
agreement shall protect the confidentiality of said data as per the requirements of Ohio
Administrative Code 5101:1-1-03, the regulations promulgated by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services, the provisions of HIPAA, specifically 45
CFR 164.501, any amendments thereto, and as detailed below.

Definition - “Client data” is any information that is, or can be, related to an individual
client including all personal health information (PHI) as defined at 45 CFR 164.501.

Permitted Uses and Disclosures - The Provider and its agents and subcontractors shall
not use or disclose client data except as specifically stated in this agreement.

Safeguards - The Provider shall use appropriate safeguards to protect against use or
disclosure not provided for in this agreement.

Reporting of Disclosure - The Provider shall promptly report to the County any
knowledge of uses or disclosures of client data that are not in accordance with this
Agreement or applicable law. In addition, Provider shall mitigate any adverse effects of
such a breach to the extent possible.

Agents and Subcontractors — The Provider ensures that all its agents and
subcontractors that receive client data from or on behalf of the County agree to the same
restrictions and conditions that apply to Provider with respect to the use or disclosure of
the client data.

Accessibility of Information — The Provider shall make available to the County such
information as the County may require to fulfill the County’s obligations to provide
access to, provide a copy of, and account for disclosures with respect to client data
pursuant to HIPAA and regulations promulgated by the United States Department of
Health and TTuman Services, including, but not limited to, 45 CFR 164.154 and 164.528
and any amendments thereto.

Amendments of Information — The Provider shall make client data available to the
County in order for the county to fulfill its obligations pursuant to HIPAA to amend the
information and shall, as directed by the County, incorporate any amendments into the
information held by the Provider and ensure incorporation of any such amendments into
information held by its agents or subconiractors.
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Disclosure — The Provider shall make available its internal practices, books and records
relating to use and disclosure of client data received from the County, or created or
received by the Provider on behalf of the County, to the County and to the Secretary of
the U.S. Department or Health and Human Services for the purposes of determining the
County’s compliance with HIPAA and the regulations promulgated by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services and any amendments thereto.

Material Breach - In the event of a material breach of Provider’s obligation under this
section, the County may at its option terminate this agreement. Termination of this
agreement shall not effect any provision of this agreement which, by its wording or its
nature, is intended to remain effective and to continue to operate in the event of
termination.

Return or Destruction of Information - Upon termination of this Agreement, the
Provider, at the County’s option, shall return to the County, or destroy, all client data in
its possession, and keep no copies of the information except as requested by the Agency
or required by law. If Provider or its agents or subcontractors destroy any client data then
the Provider will provide to the County documentation evidencing such destruction. Any
client data maintained by Provider shall continue to be extended the same protections set
forth in this Agreement for as long as it is maintained.

AUDIT RESPONSIBILITY
OMB Circular A-133

The Provider acknowledges that they are a subrecipient as defined in Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133; Subject: Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations.

The Provider agrees to comply with all relevant requirements of OMB Circular A-133
and is advised that a full text copy of the circular is available at
www.whitehouse.gov/omb/

The Provider further acknowledges responsibility for obtaining an annual single or
program specific external audit, to include an assessment of the degree of compliance
with the requirements contained in OMB Circular A-133 for Federal funding in excess
of $500,000.00 in a fiscal year.

The Provider agrees to provide a copy of this audit to the County each year within 30
days of receipt.

The County reserves the right to withhold payment of the final contract invoice, or
subsequent invoices in the event of a contract amendment, pending receipt of the annual
audit.

The Provider acknowledges that they are subject to subrecipient monitoring, as defined
in OMB Circular A-133 and as implemented by the Ohio Department of Jobs and
Family Services (ODJFS) OAC Rule: 5101:9-1-88; Subject: Subrecipient Annual Risk
Assessment Review and Subrecipient Monitoring Process.
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These monitoring activities include, but are not limited to:

e An annual risk assessment to ensure that resources and personnel are used
effectively.

e An on-site or desk review of Provider records to:

= Verify that services being provided are within the scope of the funding
being received and that the Provider has an effective means to determine
recipients are eligible for services being provided.

" Provide reasonable assurance that the cost of goods, services and
property are allowable and that expenditures appear to be within the
budget submitted.

»  Provide reasonable assurance that the Provider has acquired goods and
services in accordance with applicable local, state and federal
regulations.

»  Provide reasonable assurance that reports are supported by underlying
accounting or performance records and are submitted in accordance with
provisions of the contract.

»  Ensure that, when applicable, appropriate cash management practices are
in place; that program income is correctly carned, recorded and used;
and that required audits are obtained and the Provider is in
compliance with any resulting corrective action plan.

Other Audits and Reviews

The Provider agrees to accept responsibility for receiving, replying to and/or complying
with any audit exception or finding resulting from any appropriate federal, state or local
audit or review related to the provisions of this contract.

Audits and reviews will be conducted using a "sampling" method. Depending on the
type of audit or review conducted, the areas to be reviewed using the sample method
may include but are not limited to; months, expenses, total units, and billable units. If
errors are found, the error rate of the sample period will be applied to the entire audit
period. '

The Provider agrees to repay the County amounts due that result from any audit or
review finding with monetary implications contained in an audit or review conducted by
any appropriate federal, state or local government entity.

The Provider agrees to repay the County the full amount of payment received for
duplicate billings, erroneous billings, or false or deceptive claims.

When an overpayment is identified and the overpayment cannot be repaid in one month,
the Provider will be required and hereby agrees to sign a Repayment of Funds
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Agreement. The Provider recognizes and agrees that the County may withhold any
money due and recover through any appropriate method any money erroneously paid
under this contract if evidence exists of less than full compliance with this contract. If
payments are not made according to the agreed upon terms, future checks will be held
until the repayment of funds is current. Checks held more than 60 days will be canceled
and will not be reissued.

The County also reserves the right to not increase the rate(s) of payment or the overall
contract amount for services purchased under this contract if there is any outstanding or
unresolved issuc related to an audit finding.

The County may allow a change in the terms of the Repayment of Funds Agreement.
Any change will require a formal amendment to the Repayment of Funds Agreement
that must be signed by all parties. An amendment to the Repayment of Funds
Agreement may also be processed if any additional changes or issues develop or need to
be addressed.

Other Deliverables

Within 30 days of receipt, the Provider agrees to give the County a copy of Provider’s
annual independent audit report and any associated management letters.

WARRANTY

The Provider warrants that its services and/or goods shall be performed and/or provided
in a professional manner in accordance with applicable professional standards.

ACTS OF GOD

If by reason of Acts of God, the parties are unable in whole or in part to act in
accordance with this contract, the parties shall not be deemed in default during the
continuance of such inability provided, however, that Provider shall only be entitled to
the benefit of this paragraph for fourteen (14) days if the event of force majeure does not
affect the County’s property or employees which are necessary to the Provider’s ability
to perform.

The term "Acis of God" as used herein shall mean without limitation: strikes or lockout;
acts of public enemies; insurrections; riots; epidemics; lightening; earthquakes; fire;
storms; flood; washouts; droughts; arrests; restraint of government and people; civil
disturbances; and explosions.

The Provider shall, however, remedy with all reasonable dispatch any such cause to the
extent within its reasonable control that which prevents the Provider from carrying out
its obligations contained herein.

COORDINATION

The Provider will advise the County of any significant fund raising campaigns
contemplated by the Provider within Cuyahoga County for supplementary operating or

capital funds during the term of this contract so that the same may be coordinated with
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any planned promotion of public or private funds by the County for the benefit of this
and other agencies within the community.

LEGAL ACTION

Any legal action brought pursuant to the contract will be filed in the state courts located
in Cuyahoga County, Ohio and Ohio law will apply.

CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT

The Provider agrees to cooperate with the County, ODJFS and any other Child Support
Enforcement Agency in ensuring that the Provider’s employees meet child support
obligations established under state law. Further, by executing this contract, the Provider
certifies present and future compliance with any order for the withholding of child
support payments that are issued pursuant to Sections 3113.21 and 3113.214 of the Ohio
Revised Code.

PUBLIC RECORDS

Subject to Article XXII Confidentiality, this contract is a matter of public record under
the laws of the State of Ohio. The Provider agrees to make copies of this contract
promptly available to any requesting party. Upon request made pursuant to Ohio Law,
the County shall make available the contract and all public records generated as a result
of this contract.

By entering into this contract, the Provider acknowledges and understands that records
maintained by the Provider pursuant to this contract may be deemed public record and
subject to disclosure under Ohio law. Provider shall comply with the Ohio public records
law.

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

The Provider certifies and affirms that the Provider will comply with all applicable state
and federal laws regarding a drug-free workplace. The Provider will make a good faith
effort to ensure that all employees performing duties or responsibilities under this
contract, while working on state, county or private property, will not purchase, transfer,
use or possess illegal drugs or alcohol, or abuse prescription drugs in any way.

AMENDMENTS

All amendments shall be in writing and executed by both parties. All amendments and
changes shall be dated and become part of the original contract.

WAIVER
Any waiver by either party of any provision or condition of this contract shall not be

construed or deemed to be a waiver of any other provision or condition of this contract,
nor a waiver of a subsequent breach of the same provision or condition.
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PROVIDER SOLICITATION OF COUNTY EMPLOYEES

The Provider warrants that for one (1) calendar year from the beginning date of this
contract with the County, the Provider and its employees will not solicit the County’s
employees to work for the Provider. The term Provider includes all staff personnel.

MAINTENANCE OF SERVICE

The Provider certifies the services being reimbursed are not available from the Provider
on a non-reimbursable basis or for less than the unit cost and that the level of service
existing prior to the contract shall be maintained. The Provider further certifies that
Federal funds will not be used to supplant non-federal funds for the same service.

GRIEVANCE PROCESS

The Provider will notify the County in writing on a monthly basis of all gricvances
initiated by participants that involve the services provided through this contract. The
Provider shall submit any and all facts pertaining to the grievance and the resolution of
the grievance to the program contact person.

The Provider will post their organizational grievance policy and procedure in a public or
common area at cach contracted site so all participants are aware of the process.

PROPERTY OF THE OFFICE OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES

Any item produced under this contract or with funds provided under this contract,
including any documents, data, photographs and negatives, electronic reports/records, or
other media, are the property of the Office of Health & Human Services, which has an
unrestricted right to reproduce, distribute, modify, maintain, and use the deliverables.
The Provider will not obtain copyright, patent, or other proprietary protection for the
deliverables. The Provider will not include in any deliverable any copyrighted matter in
the manner provided in this contract. The Provider agrees the deliverables will be made
freely available to the general public unless the County determines, pursuant to state or
federal law, that such materials are confidential.

DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

For contracts valued at greater than $100,000.00, the County may not contract with
Providers on the non-procurement portion of the General Services Administration’s List
of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs:
(hereinafter known as List) in accordance with Executive Order 12549 and 12689.

By signing this contract, the Provider warrants that the Provider will immediately notity
the County if the Provider is added to the List at any time during the life of this contract.
Upon receipt of notice, the County will issue a termination notice in accordance with the
terms of the contract. Tfthe Provider fails to notify the County, then the County reserves
the right to immediately suspend payment and terminate the contract.
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By entering into this contract I agree on behalf of the contracting business to conduct this transaction by
electronic means by agreeing that all documents requiring County signatures may be executed by
electronic means, and that the electronic signatures affixed by the county to said documents shall have
the same legal effect as if that signature was manually affixed to a paper version of the document. I also
agree on behalf of the aforementioned entities and persons, to be bound by the provisions of chapters
304 and 1306 of the Ohio Revised Code as they pertain to electronic transactions, and to comply with
the electronic signature policy of Cuyahoga County.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date below
written.,

CUYAHQ% Eﬁma:‘ffpﬁglﬂecut ive

BY: 2011-11-08 09:13:23
Edward FitzGerald, County Executive

THE METROHEALTH SYSTEM

BY:
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EXHIBIT I
PROGRAM DESIGN (Provider)

Boot Camp for New Dads

The County agrees to enter into a contract with The MetroHealth System, hereinafter referred
to as Provider, for the period from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 to implement and expand the
Boot Camp for New Dads Program. This program will target fathers at 8 facilities in
Cuyahoga County as described below.

PROGRAM MODEL AND DESIGN

Target populations and deliverables

Boot Camp for New Dads is available to all expectant fathers who are: (1) interested in improving,
strengthening or developing a relationship with their children; and (2) at risk of becoming premature
fathers.

While this program is available to all dads-to-be regardless of cultural, economic or age level, a
special emphasis will be placed on increasing the number of participants who cope with poverty
and/or low income status.

To create stronger relationships between fathers and children, this program seeks the following
deliverables/outcomes for “rookie” fathers:

° Improved competencies in holding, diapering, burping, calming, swaddling and caring for
the physical needs of new babies;

© Learn about typical and potential changes in personal and family dynamics and functioning
with the addition of a newborn (e.g., maternal postpartum depression, work-home balance, etc.);

° Learn techniques for becoming a parenting team with the partner, and techniques for
overcoming the “gatekeeper” (wherein only mom can care for the infant properly, etc.)
phenomenon;

® Learn concrete ways to protect/nurture their partners and babies;

o Learn appropriate ways to deal with stress and/or fatigue inherent in caring for a newborn;

o Learn about Shaken Baby Syndrome and be able to state at least one way in which they can
prevent it;

Increased involvement of non-custodial fathers; and
Increased awareness about resources and programs regarding fatherhood and childhood
development.

Boot Camp for New Dads builds the parenting skills of fathers, provides peace of mind, presents the
responsibility of fatherhood as do-able, prepares fathers to meet the psychological needs of their
children, and builds the confidence of expectant fathers prior to the “magic moment” of childbirth
when fathers are highly motivated. It reinforces the importance of active fatherhood and ultimately
contributes to strengthening the overall functioning of families in our community.

Recruitment activities and strategies

MetroHealth will coordinate the marketing of Boot Camp for New Dad programs, including
marketing through rack cards, brochures, working with physicians who provide obstetrical services,
and maintaining information on the Cuyahoga County Fatherhood Initiative and Healthy Fathering
Collaborative of Greater Cleveland website. A special emphasis will be placed on recruiting
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participants who are at risk of becoming premature fathers and incarcerated dads.

On a national level, Boot Camp for New Dads continues to garner media attention, with news
segments on ABC, CBS, NBC, and CNN as well as articles in Life, CHILD, Ladies Home Journal
magazines, Reader’s Digest and others. In instances when Boot Camp receives national media
attention, MetroHealth will work with local media to bring a community focus and help fuel the
expansion of Boot Camp to dads in Cuyahoga County.

In addition, word-of-mouth referrals continue to help increase in number of participants and indicate
the level of satisfaction of participant fathers. MetroHealth will work the participants to ensure this
highly effective method of recruitment continues in communities served by each birthing facility.

Key program components and strategies

MetroHealth will partner with hospitals within the Cleveland Clinic Health System and University
Hospitals networks to coordinate Boot Camp for New Dads resources. Sites included in the
collaboration are Fairview and Lakewood Hospitals, Hillcrest Hospital, Womankind, MetroHealth,
Southwest General Hospital, University Hospitals MacDonald Women’s Hospital, Cuyahoga
County Correctional Facility and Community Based Correctional Facility.

Expectant fathers will attend Boot Camp’s three-hour workshop at each of the birthing sites in
which a facilitator, along with “veteran” dads and their infants, orient and teach parenting skills to
“rookie” dads (a video will be used in the Correctional Facilities). Veteran dads are men who have
graduated from the Boot Camp workshop with infants, age two to four months, and who return as
volunteers with their new babies in tow so dads-to-be may interact with them.

The Boot Camp for New Dads curriculum builds parenting skills for expectant fathers with veteran
dads explaining a variety of techniques (burping, changing, swaddling, etc.) and prepares them
psychologically through discussing a broad range of issues such as the importance of active
fatherhood, bonding, work hours, forming a parent team, safety, preventing child abuse, child
development, and the “trouble shooters™ guide to crying babies. Realizing that good relationships
between parents positively impacts children, strong emphasis is placed on the support new moms
need from new dads. During the workshop, expectant dads have the opportunity to experience
hands-on activities such as holding, diapering, and feeding a baby under the watchful and
experienced eye of the veteran dads and the program director and facilitators.

The session also provides opportunities to further solidify the involvement of expectant fathers by
creating networks of fathers who can provide support and encouragement before and after the
“magic moment” of childbirth and inviting fathers to return to a session with their child after their
child is born.

Expectant fathers are also exposed to additional resources to help them transition to fatherhood and
provide the best possible care for their children. The national organization for Boot Camp for New
Dads offers web resources where fathers (and mothers) can view New Dads Information and link to
DadsAdventure.com for additional information and to chat with other dads (or mothers, depending
on the time of day). The Help Me Grow and Strong Start for Cuyahoga County Families programs
are two of the services that are highlighted during the Boot Camp workshop, and fathers can learn
about other county services pertaining to fatherhood roles and responsibilities, visitation, and
employment.

Collaborative partnerships
MetroHealth will partner with Women’s Centers, Hospitals and Correctional Facilities within the
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Cleveland Clinic Health System and University Hospitals networks to coordinate Boot Camp for
New Dads. Collaborative birthing hospitals include Fairview and Lakewood Hospitals, Hillcrest
Hospital, Womankind, MetroHealth, Southwest General Hospital, University Hospitals MacDonald
Women’s Hospital, the Cuyahoga County Correctional Facility and the Community Based
Correctional Facility. A sample letter of collaboration is attached and details the specific nature of
the collaborations. (The MetroHealth System views letters with the partners as "legal agreements”,
which MetroHealth will not enter into if this proposal is not funded.) Each facility will continue to
administer its Boot Camp for New Dads while MetroHealth will oversee resources needed to ensure
success at each site.

This program may also serve as a model for other potential collaborations among Cleveland’s
healthcare providers.

Timeline

Each facility will continue administration of monthly or bi-monthly Boot Camps at each site. The
coordinating activities managed by staff at MetroHealth will be ongoing in support of these
programs. There will be total of at least 84 Boot Camps during the contract year.

Performance targets

With a solid program established at each site, the time is ideal to expand the program by increasing
the number of dads participating by up to 10% in 2012 and raising the awareness level of dads that a
program creating specifically for dads and taught by dads exists. Currently, about five percent of
new dads participate in Boot Camp for New Dads annually. This program aims to increase
enrollment at each center by consolidating marketing efforts and through the targeted recruitment
activities of the Father Finders.

This program also aims to reach desired outcomes for “rookie” fathers that include the deliverable
previously mentioned, including building parenting skills, improving family relationships, and
increasing awareness regarding county services for fathers, children, and families.

Plan for documentation

The Administrative Coordinator will be responsible for working with the facilities to document all
services. Specifically, this individual will maintain accurate documentation of services provided
including computer databases and tracking of data and will contact patients/families served after 30
days to assess value of services provided and identify any unmet needs. This individual will
tabulate new dad and training evaluations and analyze results in an effort to report to collaborating
facilities in order to improve all Boot Camp programs as well as to report to the Cuyahoga County
Fatherhood Initiative.

Evaluation methods

Evaluation procedures are in place to assess not only the experience of expectant fathers but also
those fathers who are trained as volunteer coaches and coordinators. Expectant fathers are asked to
fill out an evaluation at the end of the session, rating their experience and allowing for feedback on
how to improve the session. A similar evaluation form is given to fathers who return as volunteer
coaches and coordinators.

Since training is an important factor in maintaining the quality and experience of Boot Camp for
New Dads, training is offered to coaches and coordinators who are new and returning to serve again.

As the coordinating body for Boot Camp for New Dads, MetroHealth will assure that evaluation
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procedures are as effective as possible and can improve the programs at all the participating
facilities. In addition, the Administrative Coordinator will contact patients/families served after 30
days to assess value of services provided and identify any unmet needs.
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EXHIBIT I

BUDGET

The County agrees to pay the Provider for the costs described below to the degree they are determined
to be fair and reasonable for the Boot Camp for New Dads Program in an amount not to exceed
$48.000.00.

L

IL

1.

V.

The County agrees to reimburse the Provider for the costs incurred for salaries, fringe benefits
and consultation fees in an amount not to exceed $18,500.00.

To receive reimbursement for these costs, the Provider must submit an invoice detailing the
actual expenses incurred during the billing month with the appropriate supporting
documentation. The County anticipates that salaries and fringe benefits will be invoiced on an
approximately equal basis each month.

The County agrees to reimburse the Provider for operational costs as follows in an amount not
to exceed $29.500.00

Travel $1,675.00
Consumable Supplies $27,825.00

A. To receive reimbursement for these costs, the provider must submit an invoice detailing
the actual expenses incurred during the billing month with the appropriate supporting
documentation.

B. Inorderto meet the objectives of this program, the Agency agrees to allow for the shifting
of dollars within the category of miscellaneous costs as necessary without a formal
amendment and without exceeding the approved contract amount. The Provider must
submit this request in writing with a narrative to support their request to the designated
Contract Specialist for prior approval.

The Provider agrees that the services being contracted for are not available from the Provider on
a non-reimbursable basis for less than the unit rate and that the level of service to public
assistance and food stamp recipients is guaranteed.

The Provider understands that failure to comply with these provisions may result in the Provider
refunding any funds received from the County that were in violation of any provisions contained
above.

For payment processing, an invoice must be submitted by the 15™ of the month directly to:

Cuyahoga County Fatherhood Initiative

1276 West 3" St., Suite 409

Cleveland, Ohio 44113

Atin: Aldonis Grimes, Fatherhood Coordinator
Ph: (216) 698-2869; Fax: (216) 443-7276
Email: agrimes(@cuyahogacounty.us
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees of
The MetroHealth System
Cleveland, Chio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely presented
component unit of The MetroHealth System (the System), a component unit of Cuyahoga County, Chio, as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2009,which collectively comprise the System's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the System's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We did not audit the financial
statements of the discretely presented component unit, The MetroHeaith Foundation inc. {the Foundation}. Those
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon, has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Foundation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.
The financial statements of The MetroHealth System for the year ended December 31, 2008 were audited by other
auditors, whose report dated April 24, 2009, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes consideration of internal controf over
financiai reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s infernal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinfon. An audit afso includes examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in ihe financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaiuating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit, and the report of the other auditors, provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the 2009 financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type acfivities and the
discretely presented component unit of the System as of December 31, 2009, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 2 through 12 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit such information and we express ho opinion on it.

Medadesy f %llac, tor

Cleveland, Ohio
April 28, 2010

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is a member firm of RSM Inernational
~ an affiliafion of separate and independent legal entities.




The MetroHealth System

(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2009

Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section of The MetroHealth Syster’s (the System) annual financial report presents management’s discussion
and analysis (MD&A) of the System'’s financial performance and provides an overall review of the System'’s financial
position and activities as of and for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. This discussion should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements and footnotes. The discussion and analysis is designed to
focus on current activities, resulting change, and currently known facts. The financial statements, footnotes, and this
discussion and analysis are the responsibility of the System’s management.

Overview of the Financial Statements :

This annual report consists of financial statements prepared in accordance with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governmenis as amended by GASB Statement No. 37, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus
and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. These standards establish
comprehensive financial reporting standards for all state and local governments and related entiies.

The System’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles promulgated by the GASB. The System is structured as a single enterprise fund with revenues
recognized when earned, not when received, Expenses are recognized when incurred, not when paid. Capital
assets are capitalized and are depreciated {except land and construction in progress) over their useful lives. See the
Notes to Financial Statements for a summary of the System’s significant accounting policies.

Following this MD&A are the basic financial statements of the System together with the notes, which are essential to
a compiete understanding of the data. The System's basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with
a broad overview of the System's finances.

The Balance Sheets present information on all the System’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in nef assets may serve as a useful indicator of the
System’s financial position.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets presents information showing how the System’s
net assets changed during each year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in

the statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future periods.

The Statement of Cash Flows relates to the flows of cash and cash equivalents. Consequently, only transactions
that affect the System’s cash accounts are recorded in this statement. A reconciliation is provided at the bottom of
the Stafement of Cash Flows to assist in the understanding of the difference between cash flows from operating

activities and operating income or loss.

The accompanying financial statements of the System include the MetroHealth Medical Center, a short-term acute
care and long-term rehabilitation facility; Broadway Medical Offices, Buckeye Health Center and MefroHealth
outpatient community health facilities: MetroHsalth Centers for Skilled Nursing Care, consisting of the Old Brookfyn
Nursing Facility and The Elisabeth Severance Prentiss Center for Skilled Nursing Care; and several urban and
suburban primary care heaith sites. All significant inter-entity transactions have been eliminated in the financial
statements.

The System is the public health care system for Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (the County) and was created pursuant to
Ohio Revised Code Chapter 339. The System is governed by a Board of Trustees appointed jointly by the Board of
County Commissioners of the Board of the County of Cuyahoga, and the senior judges of the Probate Court and
Common Pleas Court,




The MetroHealth System

(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2009

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Reporting Entity and GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, the System's financial statements are included, as a discrete
entity, in the County's Consolidated Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the CAFR can be obtained from
Frank Russo, Cuyahoga County Auditor, County Administration Building, 1219 Ontario Street, Cleveland, Ohio
44113,

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, The
MetroHealth Foundation (Foundation) is presented as a discrete entity component unit in a separate column in the
System's financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the System. The Foundation is a non-for-
profit organization supporting the System through fundraising. The Foundation is not included in the following
Management's Discussion and Analysis section, but is included in greater detail in the financial statements and

footnotes.
Financial and Operating Highlights for 2009

e Outpatient visits decreased 0.4% from the prior year.

¢ Hospital patient days decreased 6.1% from the prior year.

=  Surgical volumes increased 1.3% from 2008 levels.

o Total net assets increased $58.3 million from the prior year.

o Total employee FTE's decreased by 203 or 3.6% from the prior year.

e The Upper Payment Limit (UPL) and Hospital Care Assurance program revenues increased $11.9 million
from the prior year.

e Charity care, measured as changes foregone, reached record levels, increasing 5.3% to $252.8 million.
Financial and Operating Highlights for 2008

o Outpatient visits increased 4.1% from the prior year.
¢ Hospital patient days decreased 1.8% from the prior year.
s Surgical volumes increased 8.2% for the year.

¢ The System opened the Old Brookfyn Skilled nursing facility in March of 2008. This was the relocation of
the Skilled East facility located in Highland Hills.

 Total net assets increased $842 million from the prior year.

o The Upper Payment Limit (UPL) and Hospital Care Assurance program revenues increased $1.2 million
from the prior year.

e Charity care increased 4.6% to $240.1 million.




The MefroHealth System

(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2009

Financial Analysis of the System at December 31, 2009 and 2008

The System's total assets increased by 5.3% to $670 million and total liabilities decreased 6.3% to $369.8 million in
2009. The System's total net assets increased $58.3 million in 2009 or 24.1% from the prior year. Tabie 1
summarizes the System's balance sheets on December 31, 2008, 2008 and 2007.

TABLE 1
THE METROHEALTH SYSTEM
BALANCE SHEETS
(POLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
2009 2008 2007

Assets:

Current assets $ 09,124 § 96,897 § 110,755

Investments 260,048 228,329 222,518

Restricted assets 23,968 25,183 24,634

Capital assets ' 284,425 283,327 - 282,230

Other assets 2,772 307 5,356
Total assets $ 670,337 § 36,807 § 645,693
Liabililies and net assets:

Liakilifies:

Current fiabilifies $ 109,704 $ 97359 § 115,897
Long-term liabilities 260,130 207,247 288,637

Total liabilitles 369,834 394,606 404,334
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 88,827 90,059 83,184

Restricted net assefs, expendable 24310 21,863 26,794

Unrestricted net assets 187,366 130,279 131,381
Total net assefs 300,503 242,201 241,359
Total liabilities and net assets 3 670,337 § 636,807 § 645,693




The MetroHealth System

(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2009

Current Assets

Fiscal year 2009 ended with an increase in total current assets of $2.2 million or 2.3% compared to 2008. Cash and
cash equivalents decreased $2.3 million from normal business activity. Net patient accounts recaivable increased
$3.9 million or 5.9% from the prior year and is largely related to favorable contractual and bad debt allowance
changes in esfimates. Both are a result of management's improved receivable valuation mathodologies inifiated in
2009. Other non-patient receivables increased slightly from $18.7 million ta $18.8 million in 2009, and includes $10.0
miltion at December 31, 2009 for an amount due to the System for participation in the State of Ohio's supplemental
Medicaid program that provides access to available funding up to 100% of the Medicare upper payment limit for
inpatient hospital services (UPL Program).

In 2009, medicat and non-medical supplies inventories declined $0.5 million or 7.1% primarily from a smaller
pharmacy inventory. Prepaid expenses declined $1.7 million or 25.5% in 2008 and is related to large information
services invoices which are now paid monthly instead of annually.

Fiscal year 2008 ended with a decrease in total current assets of $13.9 million or 12.5% compared to 2007 balances,
The decrease is primarily attributed to a $16.1 million reduction in the net patient accounts receivable for the year. In
2008, efforts were focused on reducing Medicaid Pending balances and adjudicating the claims as'Self Pay or
Medicaid eligible. The year ended with Medicaid Pending balances realizing a net reduction of $23.3 million while
the Medicaid and Self Pay balances increased $4.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively.

In 2008, cash and cash equivalent balances increased by $1.8 million or 62.7% from 2007. The other receivables
balance increased $0.5 million or 2.9% from 2007. Movement in other receivables balances included a $2.4 million
increase in the UPL receivable and a $1.4 million decrease in grants receivable due to a $1.0 milion State of Ohio

payment for Senior Health and Weliness Centar constructions costs.
Investments

In 2009, total investments increased by $31.7 million or 13.9% from the prior year. Board designated investments
increased $25.3 million, Academic fund balances decreased by $1.1 million and the Depreciation Reserve fund
increased $7.5 million. The Board designated general investments increase of $25.3 million or 24.6% is related to
strong operating cash flows. The Academic funds decrease of $1.1 million, or 3.4% is primarily due to a farge
radiology capital expenditure of $0.6 million. The Depreciation Reserve fund increase is attributed to transfers of
$5.9 million for annual funding requirements, realized investment returns of $2.7 million and a mark to market
adjustment decrease of $1.1 million. The Depreciation Reserve fund grew 8.1% in 2009.

In 2008, fotal investments increased $5.8 million or 2.6% above 2007. The Depreciation Reserve fund increased
$8.2 million from $5.5 million in transfers for the annual funding requirement, and investments returns that includes
mark to market adjustments $2.7 million. The Academic funds balance decreased by $3.5 million from the prior year,
primarily due to capital expenditures on large projects of $1.1 miilion for Phase |l of the Picture Archiving and
Communication system and $1.8 miflion toward an Magnetic Resonance Imaging project.

Restricted Assets

Restricted Assets includes restricted cash and cash equivalents, special purpose investments, and restricted assets
Under Bond Indenture agreement. In 2009, restricted assets declined by 4.8% or $1.2 million. In 2008, restricted
assets experienced a modest increase of 2.2% or $0.5 million. In both years, the Under Bond Indenture Agreement
category assets comprised the decrease or increase.
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(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2009

Capital Assets

In 2009, capital expenditures totaled $35.8 million, a $2.6 million increase from 2008. Expenditures on some of the
larger projects include $13.6 million for the replacement of the Life Flight Program helicopters and other equipment,
$8.5 miltion for the purchase of the Valentine Street parking garage (previously feased), $3.9 million for the inpatient
electronic medical records project, $1.3 million for the replacement of air handling units, and $1.0 million for the
Interventional CT reconfiguration in radiology. The parking garage was purchased with the issuance of Series 2009A
bonds. All of the System's other 2009 capital expenditures were from operating funds. Additional detailed
information can be found in the Capital Asset section of the Nofes fo Financial Statements.

In 2008, capital expenditures totaled $33.2 million, a $21.3 million decrease from 2007. Construction at the System's
0Old Brooklyn Campus wound down in 2008 with the first quarter opening of the skilled nursing facility. Capital
expenditures on the project totaled $9.3 million for the year. 2008 expenditures on other large projects included $3.7
million for the inpatient electronic medicat records project, $2.8 million on HVAC cooling tower upgrades, $2.5 million
for the radiology Interventional CT reconfiguration, $2.5 million for demolition of the old emergency and operating
room areas, $2.2 million for electrical substation upgrades, $1.8 million toward an MRI project, $1.1 milfion for Phase
Il of the PACS (imaging) system, $1.0 million for operating room equipment, $1.0 million on ICU central station
~monitors, $1.0 million on surface parking. The System's capital expenditures were from operating funds.

Current Liabilities

In 2008, tofal current liabilities increased $12.3 million or 12.6% from the prior year. Current liabilities accounts that
increased include $9.0 million or 40.8% in accounts payable, $2.0 million or 8.2% in accrued payroll and refated
fiabilities, $1.2 million or 38.9% in accrued vacation and sick leave and $1.1 million or 15.9% for current instaliments
of long-term liabilities. Current liabilities accounts that decreased in 2009 include $1.3 million in sel-insurance
liabilities and $2.6 miflion for the payment of the Note payable.

In 2008, total current liabilities decreased $18.3 million or 15.9% from the prior year. Current liabilifies decreases of
$7.6 million in accounts payable, $5.1 million in Public Employees Retirement System liabifities, $2.7 million in self-

insurance liabilities, $2.5 million in third-party payables and $1.1 million in short-term notes payable account for the

change from the preceding year.

Long-Term Liabilities

In 2009, long-term liabilities, less current installments, decreased $37.1 million or 12.5% from the prior year. Self-
insurance liabilities declined $8.6 million or 25.4%, estimated amounts due to third party payors declined $7.9 million
or 34.2% and other long-term liabilities decreased $22.0 million. The accrued vacation and sick leave liability grew
slightly and long-term debt increased $1.3 miflion or 0.7%.

The 2009 decline in self-insurance liabilities is related to favorable settflements and the resulting effect on the
actuarial report valuation for malpractice claims/lawsuits against the System. The decline in the liability for estimated
amounts due to third party payors is primarily the result of updated allowance estimates and secondarily favorable

reimbursement cost report settlements.

Other long-term liabilities, which experienced a sharp decline in 2009, is related to favorable mark to market
adjustments of $17.6 million on the System's two interest SWAP agreements that are linked to its long-term debt, and
reclassification of the remaining pollution remediation obligation to Other current liabilities. The $1.3 million increase
in fong-term debt is primarily attributed to the issuance of the Series 2009A bonds totaling $8.5 million, deferred bond
refunding loss amortization of $0.7 million and principal payments of $7.0 million.
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The System's bond indenture agreements contain various covenants that the System must maintain. The financial
covenants include Days Cash on Hand, Debt Service Coverage and Debt to Capitalization ratios. Additional detail
regarding the System's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 of the Financial Statements.

In 2008, long-term liabilities, less current instaflments increased $8.6 million or 3.0% in the prior year. For 2008, self-
insurance liabilities increased $3.7 million or 12.1%, accrued vacation and sick leave increased $2.4 million or 8.2%,
and other long-term liabilities increased $17.7 million or 409.7%. In 2008, the liability for amounts due to third party
payors decreased $9.0 million or 28.0% and long-term debt declined $6.1 million or 3.2%.

In 2008, the liability for amounts due to third party payors decreased $9.0 million and reflects a reversal of an $8.3
million liability to a bankrupt managed care company. The portion of the bankruptcy case that claimed the System
received preferential payments feading up to the bankruptey filing was adjudicated in 2008. The System, therefore,
reversed its reserve for the potential payback.

In 2008, the large increase of $17.7 million in Other Long-Term Liabilities is related to the System's two interest
SWAP agreements that are linked to its long-term bond debt. The System was not immune to the unprecedented
global economic downtum of 2008 where 10 and 30 year interest rates fell 140 and 150 basis points, respectively, in
November. This resulfed in a large unfavorable change in the System's mark to market adjusiment for its SWAPS.
The market value related to SWAP agreements changed by $19.4 million from 2007 to 2008. The System ended the
year with a fiability of $17.7 million that is reflected in Other Long-Term Liabilities. The SWAP agreements do not
require the System to put up any addition collateral. '

The 2008 dacrease of $6.1 million in long-term debt reflscts debt principal payments of $7.0 million and amorfization
of bond discounts and deferred losses of $0.8 million.




The MetroHealth System

{A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2009

TABLE 2
THE METROHEALTH SYSTEM

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

Revenues:

Operafing revenues
Net patient service revenue
Other revenue

Non-operating revenues
County appropriaion
lnvestment income
Unrealized (income) loss on investments
. Other revenue
Nencapital grants and donations
Grants for capital acquisitions

Total revenues

Expenses;

Operating expenses
Professional care of patients
Dietary
Household and property
Administrafive and general
Employee benefits
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation and amortization

Non-operating expenses
Specific purpose fund expenses
Interest expense

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets
Total net assets - beginning of year
Total net assets - end of year

The System'’s total operating and non-operating revenues in 2009 were $743.2 million while operating and non-
operating expenses totaled $684.9 miltion. This resulted in net assets increasing $58.3 million for the year. This
compares to the 2008 net asset increase of $0.8 million from fotal revenues of $683.9 million and total expenses of

$683.1 million.

2009 2008 2007

$ 645,037 § 617,178 § 562,018
28,497 25,140 24,064
673,534 642,318 586,082
38,662 39,773 40,000
5,134 8,668 11,678
14,594 (16,706) 3,382
3,267 $2,612 2,803
5,010 5,548 4,480
1,048 1,685 1,564
69,715 41,580 63,907
743,249 683,898 649,989
415,867 417,974 406,289
7,401 7,759 8,111
33,638 31,432 28,491
84,442 82,738 69,254
86,897 85,913 83,799
9,120 9,917 10,158
34,465 31,865 31,497
671,830 667,598 837,599
5,166 5,347 5,060
7,951 10,111 10,124
13,117 15,458 15,184
684,947 683,056 852,783
58,302 842 (2,794)
242,201 241,359 244,153

$ 300503 § 242201 § 241,359




The MefroHealth System

{A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2009

Operating Revenues

In 2008, operating revenues increased $31.2 million or 4.9% from the prior year. Net patient service revenues
increased $27.9 million or 4.5% and other operating revenues increased $3.4 million or 13.4% from 2008 levels.

The System's patient volumes were generally down from 2008 Jevels with some exceptions. Hospital patient days
decreased 6.1%, with discharges down 3.3%, inpatient surgeries down 0.6%, deliveries down 15.0%, and outpatient
visits down slightly. Emergency room visits increased 9.3% and outpatient surgical volumes increased 2.1% from the
prior year.

The net patient revenue increase of $27.9 million is mostly attributed o strategic first quarter price increases, full year
impacts of revenue cycle initiatives centered around optimizing coding, documentation and charge capture, higher
current year HCAP and UPL Program revenues and the implementation of improved patient receivable valuation
methods.

Gross patient revenues increased $76.2 million or 4.5% from the prior year but were partially offset with higher
contractual adjustments of $45.2 million, additional charity care of $12.6 million, and increased denial and write-off
adjustments of $1.2-million. The System’s level of charity care, $252.8 milfion in 2009, or 14.2% of gross patient
charges, continues to reflect the System’s status as a safety net facility in Cuyahoga County. Hospital Care
Assurance (HCAP) and Upper Payment Limit (UPL) program revenues, also components of net pafient revenue,
increased by $11.9 million or 28.9% from 2008 levels. HCAP and UPL programs are discussed in further detall in the
System's financial statements notes. Prior year setflement adjustments, also affecting net patient revenue, totaled
$11.2 miltion, a decrease of $1.2 million from the prior vear.

In 2009, other operating revenues were $28.5 million, an increase of $3.4 million or 13.4% from 2008 levels. Higher
other operating revenues relate to skilled nursing bed sales revenue totaling $2.6 million. The orie-time bed sales
transaction is related to the 2008 relocation of the System’s eastside skilled nursing facility to the newly renovated,
smaller capacity Old Brooklyn campus facility,

fn 2008, net patient service revenue increased $55.2 million or 9.8% from 2007. Positive gains in surgical volumes of
8.2% and outpatient visits of 4.1% contributed to this growth. Additionally, price increases ranging between four and
five parcent coupled with revenue cycle initiatives centered around optimizing coding, documentation and charge
capture further contributed fo increased gross revenues of $165.2 million or 10.8% from 2007 levels. Offsets to gross
patient revenues were higher contractual adjustments of $120.7 million, additional charity care write-offs of $10.6
million, and increased denials and write-offs adjustments of $2.2 miltion. HCAP and UPL program revenues, also
increased $13.8 million and $1.1 million, respectively, over 2007 levels. Changes in estimates and prior year
settlement adjustments favorably affected net patient revenue by increasing $8.5 million from the prior year.

in 2008, charity care was $240.1 million or 14.1% of 2008 gross patient revenues.

In 2008, other operating revenues were $25.1 mitlion, an increase of $1.1 million or 4.5% from the prior year.
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(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)
Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2009

Non-Operating Revenues

In 2009, non-operating revenues totaled $69.7 million, an increase of $28.1 million or 67.7% from the prior year.
Non-operating revenues include county appropriation revenue of $39.7 miflion, investment income of $6.1 million,
unrealized income on investments of $14.6 million, other non-operating revenue of $3.3 million, and grants and
donations of $6.1 million.

County appropriation revenue decreased slightly from $39.8 million in 2008 but has remained near the $40.0 milfion
level over the past three years. Investment income decreased $2.5 million or 29.2% from the prior year as interest
rates continue to remain historically low. Unrealized income on investments increased $31.3 million which refates to
the market value changes of the System’s interest rate SWAP agreements. During 2008, the SWAP agreements
generated unrealized losses of $19.4 million, and in 2009 created unrealized income of $17.6 million. These
significant fluctuations betwaen years are the result of valuation volatility related to rapid interest rate declines during
the global economic downturn of 2008,

In 2008, non-operating revenues totaled $41.6 million, a decrease of $22.3 miflion or 34.9% from the prior year. Non-
operating revenues included county appropriation revenue of $39.8 million, investment income of $8.7 million,
unrealized losses on investments of $16.7 million, other non-oparating revenue of $2.8 million, and grants and
donations of $7.2 million. County appropriation revenue decreased slightly from $40.0 million in 2007. Investment
income decreased $3.0 million or 25.8% from depressed interest rates.

Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes the System’s operating expenses from the last three years. The System’s total
aperating expenses increased by $4.2 million or 0.6% from 2008 and increased by $30.0 million or 4.7% from 2007.

TABLE 3
THE METROHEALTH SYSTEM
OPERATING EXPENSE DETAIL
{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)
2009 2008 2007
Operating expenses:
Salaties and wages $ 371,340 § 370127 $ 357,613
Employee benefits 86,898 85,914 83,799
Medical supplies 36,476 38,881 34,862
Pharmaceuficals 31,439 31,507 30,556
Plan operations 37,352 37.990 36,264
Supplies and other 51,026 51,487 42,161
Liability insurance 10,714 9,910 10,689
Provision for bad debts 9,120 9,917 10,158
Depreciation and amortization 34,465 31,865 31,497
Total operating expenses $ 671,830 § 667,598 § 637 599

In 2009, salaries and wages were $371.3 million, an increase of $1.2 million or 0.3% from the prior year. The general
wage increase in 2009 was 3.0%. The flat salaries and wages expense is a result of the System’s organizational
restructure and workforce downsizing in April 2009. With the mid-year workforce reductions, FTE's declined by 203,
or 3.6% from the prior year.
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Employee benefits expense in 2009 was $86.9 milion, an increase of $1.0 milfion or 1.1% from 2008. Health care
benefits decreased $1.3 million, workers’ compensation expenses increased $1.1 million and unemployment
compensation increased $0.7 million. System contributions to the Ohio Public Employee Retirement System
(OPERS) increased $0.4 million on slightly higher salaries and wages.

Medical supplies expenses were $39.5 million in 2009, an increase of $0.6 million or 1.5% from the prior year.
Pharmaceutical expenses were $31.4 million, a slight decrease of 0.2% from 2008. Medical supplies and
pharmaceuticals increased a combined $0.5 million or 0.7%, consistent with lower patient volumes.

Plant Operations expenses were $37.4 million, a decrease of $0.6 million or 1.7% from 2008 levels. Supplies and
other expenses were $51.0 million, a decrease of $0.5 million or 0.9%. Liability insurance expenses were $10.7
million, an increase of $0.8 million or 8.1% from the prior year. Bad debt expense was $9.1 million, a decreass of
$0.8 million, or 8.0% from 2008. Depreciation expenses were $34.5 million, an increase of $2.6 million, or 8.2% from

the prior year.

in 2008, salaries and wages increased $12.5 million or 3.5% from 2007, lower than the preceding year increase of
5.8%. General non-physician wage increases were 3.0% in 2008, The impact of the reduction of 71 administrative
-and support FTE's was offset by increases in physician general-and incentive pays that totaled $5.8 million or 6.0%.

Employee benefits increased $2.1 million, or 2.5% from 2007 to 2008. OPERS payments increased by $2.0 million
or 4.4% year over year driven by general wage increases and an employer confribution rate increase of 0.15%.
Health insurance costs increased $0.4 milfion or 1.3%. Workers' compensation costs declined $0.5 million.

In 2008, medical supplies increased $4.0 million or 14.5% from 2007. Increases in prosthetics expenses of §2.5
million or 29.0% year over year significanty contributed to expense growth, Pharmaceuticals expense increases
contributed an additional $1.0 miflion or 3.1% to supply expense. Medical Supplies and Pharmaceuticals increased a
combined $5.0 million or 7.6% from 2007 to 2608.

Plant operations expense grew $1.7 million or 4.8% between 2007 and 2008. Gas, oil and natural gas increased

$0.5 million and service contracts on equipment and software contributed $1.1 million to the increase over the prior
year. Liability insurance expense decreased $0.8 million when compared to 2007.

Non-Operating Expenses

Non-operating expenses, which include special purpose fund expenses (grant expenses) and interest expense,
decreased $2.3 million between 2008 and 2009, after a slight increase between years 2007 and 2008.

Interest expense in 2009 decreased $2.2 million or 21.4% from 2008. The decrease relates to lower interest rates on

the System’s variable-rate bonds and higher capitalized interest. Capitafized interest increased from $0.1 million in
2008 to $0.6 million in 2009. Interest expense was flat between 2007 and 2008.
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

Several factors and uncertainties that are contained in the budget are:

The System has budgeted to receive a $40.0 million appropriation from the County in 2010.  This funding
levef approximates the amounts received in each of the past three years.

The System will continue to explore revenue enhancements, cost reductions and productivity improvements.

Capital funds needed for replacement of depreciated equipment and facilities, and vital service-line growth
and expansion, will require the use of existing investments or additional debt. The System intends to use
unrestricted reserves and proceeds from its January 2010 bond offering {Series 2009B) of $75.0 million for
future capital needs. The System’s bond offering is discussed as a subsequent event in the Notes to
Financial Statements section of this financial report. In addition, efforts to obtain appropriate philanthropy to
offset operational and capital needs will continue in 2010.

Governor Strickland's staff released the proposed 2010/2011 State budget which contains a new franchise
tax on Ohio hospitals total facility costs to funt Medicaid and provider payments. The proposal will increase
system inpatient and outpatient Medicaid hospital payments by 5%. The State claims that without this
assessment, Medicaid payments to hospitals would need fo be reduced by 15% to offset the State shortfall.
In addition to the increased Medicaid payments, the State FY 2010/2011 budget reserves 8.16% and
10.29% respectively, of total hospital franchise fee/tax funds to fund an expansion of the current Upper
Payment Limit program (UPL) to private hospitals. This UPL program would cover inpatient and outpatient
services for private hospitals as wall as fund the existing public hospital UPL program. The mathodology
used to distribute the public hospital UPL funds will remain unchanged and will be slightly different from the
new private hospital UPL program. The expansion of the UPL program will affect the existing public hospital
UPL program by eliminating the inter-government payment transfer program and replacing it with the state-
wide hospital franchise fee and expanding the public hospital UPL to include outpatient services.

In 2009, the System eamed $13.1 million in net UPL dollars. This was an increase over the prior year due
to the elimination of Medicaid HMO's resulting in an increase in Medicaid Fee for Service (FFS) claims
during the first three quarters of 2009. Medicaid managed care patients do not qualify for UPL monies, only
Medicaid FFS patients qualify. During the third quarter of 2009, because of State-mandated Medicaid
managed care penetration, hospitals have been experiencing declines in traditional Medicaid FFS volumes
that could unfavorably affect future UPL dollars.

The System is estimafing net Hospital Care Assurance Program (HCAP) dollars of $32.5 million in 2010. As
a result of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act signed in February of 2009, MetroHealth received
an additional $2.1 million in net HCAP dolfars for 2009. From discussions with The Ohio Hospital
Association, MetroHealth expects to receive these funds again in 2010, all other components being
constant. It is estimated, the 2010 OBRA Cap (based on 2008 data) will increase to $64.9 million, from
$55.1 miliion, due to growth in uncompensated care from the prior year.
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The MetroHealth System
{A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2009 and 2008
(Dollars in Thousands)

Component Unit
The MetroHealth
The MetroHealth System Foundation, Inc.
Assets 2009 2008 2009 2008
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2450 § 4742 § 392 3§ 583
Accounts receivable 71,182 67,206 1,822 2,571
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (4,527) (7,138) (124) (192)
66,655 60,068 1,698 2,379
Other receivables 18,845 18,728 - -
Supplies 6,153 6,624 44 27
Prepaid expenses 5,021 - 8,735 S -
Total current assets 99,124 96,897 2134 2,989
investments:
General 128,233 102,932 3,500 2911
Academic funds 31,171 32,252 - -
Depreciation resarve fund 100,644 93,145 . -
260,048 228329 3,500 2911
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 97 125 1,038 047
Special purpose investments 5,556 5,556 18,649 1531
Under bond indenture agreement 18,315 19,502 - -
23,968 25,183 1,687 16,258
Capital Assets:
Land ang construction in prograss 18,853 26,391
Land improvements 11,571 11,279
Buildings and fixed equipment 529,380 511,069
Equipment 275,044 252,433
834,848 801,172
Accumulated depreciation (550,423) {517 845}
284 425 283,327
QOther assets 2,172 30N
Total § 670337 § 636,807 § 53§ 22158

Sae Notes to Financial Statements,

13



Compenent Unit

The MetroHealth
The MefroHealth System Foundation, Inc.
Liabilities 2009 2008 2009 2008
Current Liabiliies:
Accounts payable §  3Mus § 227 $ 107§ 1,404
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 26,445 24,443 - .
Contribution payable to the Public Employees
Refirement System _ 7,362 [ARN . -
Accrued interest payable 2,104 2,353 1 2
Self-insurance liabilities 13,152 14,416 - -
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors 4,273 3,857
Accrued vacation and sick feave 4,360 3117
Note payabie - 2,599 - -
Current installments of long-term dabt 8,075 5,959 70 67
Other current [iabilities 12,198 10,377 401 420
Total current liabilities 109,704 97,359 1,499 1,893
Long-Tem Liabilities, less current installments:
Seli-insurance liabilities 25,324 33,925
Estimated amounts dus to third-party payors 15,261 23,199
Accrued vacation and sick leave 32,017 31,854
Other 5 22014 . .
Long-term debt 187,523 186,255 - 70
Total long-term liabilities 260,130 297,247 . 70
Total liabilities 369,834 304,606 1,499 1,963
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 88,827 40,059 - -
Restricted net assets, expendable 24310 21,863 12,705 11,326
Restricted net assets, nonexpendable . . 8,255 7,949
Unrestricted net assets 187,366 130,278 2,862 920
Total net assets 300,503 242 201 23,822 20,195
Total liabilities and net assefs § 670337 & 636807 $ 25321 § 22158
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The MetroHealth System
(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating Revenuss
Net patiant service revenus
Other revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Professional care of pafients

Dietary

Household and property

Administrative and general

Employse benafits

Pravision for bad debis

Total operating expenses before
depreciation and amortization
Operating income before depreciation and
amortization
Depraciafion and amertzafion

Operating income {loss)

Non-Operafing Revenues (Expenses)
County appropriation
Net investment income (loss)
Other non-operating revenue
Noncapital grants and donations
Grant expenses and support
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses}

Income {loss) before capital confributions

Qther changes, grants for capital acquisitions
Change in net assets

Total nef assets - beginning of year

Total net assets - end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements.

Component Unit
The MetroHealth
The MefroHealth System Foundation, Inc.
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ 645,037 § 617178 § -3
28,497 25,140 -
673,534 642,318 -
415,867 417 974
7401 7,759
33,638 31,432
84,442 82,738
86,897 85,913
9,120 9,917
637,365 635,733
36,169 6,585
34,465 31,865
1,704 (25,280)
30,662 39,773 - -
20,728 (8,038) 4,609 (5,190}
3,267 2,612 - -
5010 5,548 4,786 7,210
{5,166) (5,347) {5,768) {6,632)
(7,951} (10,111) - -
55,550 24,437 3,627 (£812)
57,254 (843) 3627 (4,612)
1,048 1,685 -
58,302 842 3,627 {4,612)
242,201 241,359 20,195 24,807
$ 300503 § 242201 § 23822 § 20,195
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The MetroHealth System
{A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
{Dollars in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Patient service revenue
Other operating cash receipts
Payments to suppliers
Payments for compansation and benefits
Net cash flows provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
County appropriation
Proceeds from notes payable
Principal payments on notes payable
Interest payments on notes payable
Restricted grants and donations
Specific purpose funds expenses
Net cash flows provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Grants for capital acquisition
Acquisitions and construction
Praceeds from long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest payments on long-term debt
Net cash flows {used in) capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for investment purchases and reinvestments
Proceeds from investment sales and maturities
Interest received
Net cash flows (used in} investing activities

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning

Ending

16

2009 2008
619,240 § 610,040
28,497 25,140
(167,855) (152,615)
(453,872) (458,671)
26,010 23,894
39,662 39,773

- 2,599
(2,599) (3,707)
(41) (82)
8,592 8,160
(5.215) (5,631)
40,399 41,112
1,048 1,685
(36,134) (36,344)
8,504 .
(6,970) (6,647)
7,75%) (9,253)
(41,303) (50,550)
(74,669) (79,537)
41,100 58,813
6,134 8,083
(27 426) (12,636)
{2,320) 1,811
4,867 3,056
2547 § 4,867




The MetroHealth System
{A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)

Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
{Dollars in Thousands)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Flows
Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss) o net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amoriization
Provision for bad debts
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in patient accounts receivable
Decrease in other assets
Increase {decrease) in self-insurance liabiiities
Increase in accounts payable and other liabilities
{Decrease) in long-term liabilities

Net cash flows provided by operating activities

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:

2009 2008

§ 1704 (25,280)
34,465 31,865

9,120 9917

(15,707) 6,182

1,897 468

(0,865) 984

12,171 6,475

(7,775) (6,717)

$ 2600 § 23,894

The System held investments at December 31, 2009 and 2008, with a fair value of $283,919 and $253,387,
respectively. During 2009 and 2008, the net change in the fair value of these investments was a decrease of

$3,028 and an increase of $2,699, respectively.

The System held interest rate swap obligations at December 31, 2009 and 2008, with a fair value of $5 and

$17,627, respectively. During 2009 and 2008, the net change in the fair value of these swap obfigations was

anincrease of $17,622 and a decrease of $19,406, respectively.

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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The MetroHealth System
(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(Dollars in Thousands)

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of financial statements prepared in accordance with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management's
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments as amended by GASB Statement No. 37, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus
and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. These standards establish
comprehensive financial reporting standards for all state and local governments and related entities.

Note1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity: The accompanying financial statements of the MetroHealth System (System) include the
MetroHealth Medical Center, a short-term acute care and tong-term rehabilitation facility; Broadway Medical Offices,
Buckeye Health Center and MetroHealth outpatient community health facilities; MetroHealth Centers for Skilled
Nursing Care, consisting of the Old Brooklyn Nursing Facility and The Elisabeth Severance Prentiss Center for
Skilled Nursing Care; and several urban and suburban primary care health sites. All significant inter-entity
transactions have been eliminated in the financial statements.

The System is the public health care system for Cuyahoga County, Ohio, and was created pursuant to Ohio Revised
Cade Chapter 339. The System is governad by a Board of Trustess appointed jointly by the Board of County
Commissioners of the Board of the County of Cuyahoga, and the senior judges of the Probate Court and Common
Pleas Court, In order to support the general operations of the System, the County of Cuyahoga, Ghio
Commissioners approved an appropriation of $39,662 and $39,773 for 2009 and 2008, respectively. The County has
also approved an appropriation of approximately $40,000 for 2010. The System is exempt from federal income taxes
as a governmental entity.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Reporting Entity, the Systent’s financial statements are included, as
a discrete entity, in the County's Consolidated Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the CAFR can be
obtained from Frank Russo, Cuyahoga County Auditor, County Administration Building, 1219 Ontario Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113,

Furthermore, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 39, Defermining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units, The MetroHealth Foundation, Inc. {Foundation)} is presented as a discrete entity component unit in
a separate cofumn in the System’s financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the System. The
Foundation is a not-for-profit organization supporting the System. The Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising
organization to supplement the resources that are available to the System in support of its programs. Although the
System does not control the timing or the amount of receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources, or
income thereon, which they hold and invest, is restricted to support the activities of the System. Because these
restricted resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the henefit of the System, it is considered a
component unit of the System. Complete financial statements of the Foundation can be obtained by writing to The
MetroHealth Foundation, 2500 MetroHealth Drive, Cleveland, Ohio 44109,
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The MetroHealth System
(A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)

Notes fo Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 2008
{Dollars in Thousands)

Note .  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Basis of Accounting: The System reports only ‘business-type” activities, which requires the following financial
stafements and management discussion and analysis:

® Management's Discussion and Analysis

e Basic Financial Statements including a Balance Sheet, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets, and Statement of Cash Flows, for the System as a whole

® Notes to Financial Statements

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Govemmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the System has elected to apply the provisions of all
relevant pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), statements and interpretations
issued prior to November 30, 1989 and all those issued after November 30, 1989, now referred to as the FASE
Standards Codification, which do not conflict with or contradict GASR pronouncements,

The System is accounted for as a proprietary fund (enterprise fund) using the flow of economic resources
meastrement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities
associated with the System’s operations are included in the Balance Sheet. Revenue is recognized in the period in
which it is eamed and expenses are recognized in the period in which incurred,

Pursuant to the Ohio Revised Code, the System submits a budget to the County Commissioners for approval by
November 1 of each fiscal year. The fundamental purpose of the budget is to plan for an expected level of
operations and to provide management with a tool to control deviation from such a ptan. The budget is prepared on
an accrual basis.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assefs: The System recognizes as operating revenues
those transactions that are major or central to the provision of health care services. Operating revenues include
those revenues received for direct patient care, grants received from organizations as reimbursement for patient
care, and other incidental revenue associated with patient care. Operating expenses include those costs associated
with providing patient care including costs of professional care, operating the hospital facilities, administrative
expenses, and depreciation and amortization. Nonoperating revenues include County appropriation, investment
income and special purpose grants and donations, primarily research. Nonoperating expenses include interest
expense and expenses from special purpose funds for research related activities.
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The MetroHealth System
{A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
{Dollars in Thousands)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue: Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors and charity care allowances. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods, as final
settlements are determined. Net patient service revenue was reduced by contractual and retroactive adjustments of
$812,214 and $865,768 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payment at amounts different from estabished
charge rates. A summary of the basis of payment by major third-party payors follows:

Medicare and Medicaid: Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare and Medicaid program beneficiaries and
Medicare capital costs are paid at prospectively determined rates-per-discharge. These rates vary according fo a
patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. As an academic medical center,
medical education payments in addition to disproportionate share entitlements are received from Medicare and
Medicaid. Medicare utilizes a prospective payment system for inpatient rehabilitation services.

Medicare outpatient claims are reimbursed under the Ambulatory Payment Classification based prospective payment
system. The payments are based on patient assessment data classifying patients into one of eight hundred thirty two
Ambulatory Payment Classifications. Inpatient psychiatric services are reimbursed at a prospectively determined per
diem rate. Certain outpatient services related to Medicare beneficiaries and capital costs for Medicaid beneficiaries
are reimbursed based on a cost-based methodology subject to certain limitations. The System is reimbursed for cost
reimbursable items at tentative rates with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by the
System and audits thereof by the Medicare and Medicaid fiscal intermediaries. The System’s classification of
patients under the Medicare and Medicaid programs and the appropriateness of their admission are subject to an
independent review. Differences between the estimated amounts accrued at interim and final sefflements are
reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets in the year of setfement. The
System recorded favorable adjustments of $11,228 and $12,437 in 2009 and 2008, respectively, due to prior year
refroactive adjustments to amounts previously estimated and changes in estimates.

Net revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 30% and 26%, respectively, of
the System’s net patient service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2009, and 30% and 29%, respectively, of
the System's net patient service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008. Laws and regulations governing
the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretaion. Compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject fo future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action
including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term. Management
believes that adequate provision has been made in the financial statements for any adjustments that may result from
finaf setflements,

CMS Recovery Audit Contractor Program: Congress passed the Medicare Modernization Act in 2003, which among
other things established a three-year demonstration of the Medicare Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program. The
RAC's identified and corrected a significant amount of improper overpayments to providers. In 2008, Congress
passed the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 which authorized the expansion of the RAC program fo all 50
states by 2010. CMS is in the process of rolling out this program nationally. Management cannot reliably predict the
impact of future RAC audits on the System's results of operations or cash flows.

Other Payors: The System has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers,
health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment under these
agreements includes prospecively-determined rates-per-discharge, discounts from established charges, and
prospectively-determined per diem rates.
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Upper Payment Limit. In September 2001, the State of Ohio Supplemental Upper Payment Limit program for Public
Hospitals {UPL) was approved by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services. This program provides access to
available federal funding up to 100% of the Medicare upper payment limits for inpatient hospital services rendered by
Ohio Public Hospitals to Ohio Medicaid consumers. Af December 31, 2009 and 2008, $10,022 and $9,789,
respectively, were due to the System and recorded on the baiance sheets in other receivables; the System’s required
match to the State of Ohio of $1,430 and $3,765, respectively, is included in other current liabilities. The net amount
recorded in net patient service revenue for UPL by the System was $19,096 and $10,732 in 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The State of Ohio discontinued the Program's required confributing match for participants as of

June 30, 2009. Effective July 1, 2009, the State began assessing a franchise fee to hospitals to fund healthcare
programs, including the UPL program. The System incurred a franchise fee expense of $3,251 in 2009, and
recorded the amount as an operating expense in the administrative and general expense category of the System’s
financial statements.

-Disproportionate Share: As a public health care provider, the System renders services to residents of the County and
others regardiess of ability to pay. The System is classified as a disproportionate share provider by the Medicare and
Medicaid programs due fo the volume of low-income patients it serves. Accordingly, the System receives additional
payments from these programs as a result of this status totaling $47,832 and $43,469 in 2009 and 2008,
respectively, (including Care Assurance of $32,642 and $29,103 in 2009 and 2008, respectively) which are included
in net patient service revenue. The System also provides major trauma services to the region. The ability to
continue these levels of service and programs is confingent upon the various continued funding sources.

Charity Care: Throughout the admission, billing, and callection processes, certain patients are identified by the
System as qualifying for charity care. The System provides care to these patients without charge or at amounts less
than its established rates. The charges foregone for charity care provided by the System, totaling $252,761 and
$240,126, which represents 14.2% and 14.1% of grass charges in 2009 and 2008, respectively, are not reported as
revenue. The System accepts certain indigent Ohio residents and all residents from the County regardiess of their
ability to pay.

Grants: The System recsives financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the United Stafes in the form of
grants. The expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies.

Other such audits could be undertaken by federal and state granting agencies and result in the disallowance of
claims and expenditures; however, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims or expenditures wil
not have a material effect on the overall financial position of the System.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The System considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates
fair value, excluding amounts limited as to use or restricted by Board designation.

Supplies: Medical supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Pharmaceutical supplies are stated af the
lower of cost or market value on a first-in first-out basis.

Investments: The System records its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. Unrealized gains
and losses on investments is included in net investment income in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes

in net assets.
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

The System pools certain of its investments for investment purposes. Investment income for these pooled
investments Is allocated to the proper investment classification based on each investment's fair value to the total fair
value of all pooled investments.

The net realized gain on investments of $420 and §557 in 2009 and 2008, respectively, is the difference between the
proceeds received and the amortized cost of investments sold and is included in net investment income in the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets.

Restricted Assets: Restricted assets are cash and cash equivalents and investments whose use is limited by legal
requirements. Investments under bond indenture agreement represent amounts required by debt instruments to pay
bond principal and interest and approved projects. Restricted cash and cash equivalents and special purpcse
investments represent monies received from donors or grantors to be used for specific purposes, primarily research.
The System has elected to use restricted assets before unrestricted assets when an expense is incurred for a
purpose for which both resources are available,

Fundraising Revenues: Gifts, grants, and program income result from fundraising activities of the Foundafion.
Though donations are solicifed for the Foundation, donors occasionally make their gifts directly to the System.

Contributions: The Foundation recognizes contributions as revenue in the period in which the pledge (promise to
give) is received. The Foundation recognizes donated services as contributions if the services (a) create or enhance
non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills, and would otherwise
be purchased by the Foundation.

Annuity Payment Obligations: The Foundation has entered into gift annuity agreements, which include provisions
requiring the Foundation to pay periodic fixed payments to beneficiaries during their lifetimes. Charitable gift
annuities differ from other charitable giving options in that the annuity is a general obligation of the Foundation.
Accordingly, if the assets of the gift are exhausted as a result of required payments to beneficiaries, unrestricted
assets of the Foundation will be ufilized to fund future payments.

Income Taxes: The Foundation is an Ohio nonprofit corporation and was granted tax-exempt status under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and is exempt from income tax on related income pursuant to Section 501(a)
of the Code. The Foundation is required to pay taxes on unrelated business income eamed by the Foundation.

Capital Assets: Capital assets are stated at cost and contributed capital assets are stated at their fair value at the
date of contribution. Expenditures for equipment must exceed $1,000 per unit and expenditures for renovations must
exceed $10,000 in order for them to be capitalized. Expenditures that substantially increase the useful lives of
existing assets are capitalized. Routine maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation and
amortization of assets recorded under capital lease (straight-line method) are provided in amounts sufficient to
amortize the cost of the related assets over their estimated useful lives. The following are the most commonly used
estimated useful lives:

Buildings 25-40 years
Building improvements 5-20 years
Equipment 3-15 years
Land improvements 5-15 years
Vehicles 4 years
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Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Half of a year's depreciation is taken the first year the asset is placed in service. The asset and accumulated
depreciation are removed from the related accounts when the asset is disposed of. Any income or loss resulting from
this disposal is recorded in the statement of revenuss, expenses, and changes in net assets.

Net Assets: The System classifies its net asse{s into three categories as follows:

Invested in Capital assets, net of related debt - consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by outstanding balances for bonds and other debt that are atfributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets - result when constraints placed on the net asset use are either externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Unrestricted net assets — consist of all other net assets that do not mest the criteria above.

Bond Discounts and Bond Issuance Costs: Defetred financing costs represent debf issuance expenditures on
long-term debt obligations and are amortized over the period the bonds are outstanding on a straight-line basis. The
amortization for deferred bond financing costs was $154 in 2008 and $154 in 2008. Amortization expense related to
bond discounts was $96 in 2009 and $82 in 2008. These amounts are included in interest sxpenss in the statement
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets.

Cost of Borrowing: Interest costs incurred on debt during the construction or acquisition of assets are capitalized as
a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. Capitalized interest of $587 and $66 was recorded in construction
in progress as opposed to interest expense for 2009 and 2008, respectively. Constuction in progress is transferred
to capital assets when assets are substantially completed and amortization of capitalized interest is accounted for in
the same manner as other componenis of asset cost and included in depreciation expense.

The System has entered into various interest-rate swap agreements. These derivative instruments are not
designated as hedging instruments; therefore, gains and losses are recognized in the statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets during the period of change. Net amounts periodically receivable or payable as
a result of swap agreements are recorded as adjustments to inferest expense on the related debt (see Note 7).

Concentrations of Credit Risk: Financial instruments that potentially subject the System to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts receivable, and investments.

The System places its cash and cash equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions. The System’s
investments include money market funds, U.S. Treasury bills and notes, and U.S. agency obligations.

Concentration of credit risk relating to patient accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the diversity and
number of the System’s patients and payors. Patient accounts recaivable consist of amounts due from government
programs, commercial insurance companies, private pay patients, and other group insurance programs. Excluding
governmental programs, no payor source represents more than 10.0% of the System's patient accounts receivable.
The System maintains an aliowance for losses based on the expected collectability of patient accounts receivable.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications of 2008 amounts have been made fo conform to the 2009 presentation.

23




The MetroHealth System
{A Component Unit of Cuyahoga County)

Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
(Dollars in Thousands)

Note 2.  Changes in Accounting Principles and Recent Accounting Pronouncements
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following statements:

Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Infangible Assets, establishes accounting and financial
reporting requirements for intangible assets. All intangible assets not specifically excluded by the scope of this
Statement should be classified as capital assets. All existing authoritative guidance for capital assets should be
applied to these intangible assets, as applicable. The System is required to implement this Statement for the vear
ending December 31, 2010.

Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, addresses the recognition,
measurement, and disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments entered into by state and local
governments. The System is required to implement this Statement for the year ending December 31, 2010.

Management has not yet determined what impact, if any, these Statements will have on the financial position and
results of operations of the Systemn,

Note 3.  Deposits and Investments

Deposits: All monies are deposited to the System’s banks or frust companias designated by the Board of Trustees.
Funds not needed for immediate expenditure may be deposited in interest bearing or non-interest bearing accounts
or U.S, govemment obligations.

Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of bank failure, the System’s deposits might not be recovered. The FDIC
increased insurance through December 31, 2009 for funds held in interest bearing accounts from $100 to $250 per
depositor per category of legal ownership. In addition, the System'’s bank participates in the FDIC Transaction
Account Guarantee Program where funds held in non-interest bearing transaction accounts were instred in full
through December 31, 2009. The System's investment policy does not address custodial risk. The System's bank
deposits at December 31, 2009 and 2008, totaled $2,498 and $4,740, respectively, and were subject to the following
categories of custodial risk;

2009 2008
Uncollateralized $ 907 § 65
Collateralized with securites held by the pledging
institution's trust department, but not in the System's name 49 63
Total amount subject to custodial risk 956 128
Amount insured 1,542 4812
Total bank bafances $ 2498 § 4,740
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Note3.  Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments :
The System: The System's investment paficy authorizes the System to invest in the following investments:

Securities and obligations of the US Treasury and other federal agencies or instrumentalities
Time certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts

Municipal and state bonds

No-load money market mutual funds investing in items listed above

Commercial paper that consfitutes unsecured short-term debt on an entity defined in Division (D) of Section
1705.01 of the Ohio Revised Code and matures 270 days from purchase date, the aggregate value of the
commercial paper does not exceed 2% of the aggregate value of the outstanding paper of the entity, the paper is
rated by a least two nationally recognized standard rating services (NRSRS) and is rated in the highest
classification and the entity has assets exceeding five hundred million dollars.

Bankers Acceptances that mature no later than 180 days from purchase, the obligations are eligible for purchase
by the Federal Reserve System, the issuer has a minimum "AA” long-term debt rating by a majority of NRSRS
agencies and any single obligation will not exceed 5% of the System's total average portfolio.

Notes issued by corporations incorporated in the United States and operating in the United States and the notes
are rated in the second highest or higher category by at feast two NRSRS at the fime of purchase, mature in two
years or less from the date of purchase and cannot exceed 15% of the System’s total average portfolio.

No load money market mutual funds rated in the highest category at the time of purchase by at least one
NRSRS and consisting exclusively of obligations in the US Treasury and other federal agencies or
instrumentalities and commercial paper listed above.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair values of the System’s investments were as follows:

Investment Maturities
2009 Less than 1 year 1-5 years

Cash $ 106428 § 106,429 § -
U.S. Government Agencies 144,740 38,337 106,403
Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home

Loan Mortgage Corporation (Federal Poois) 148 - 148
Coliateralized Mortgage Obligations 157 - 157
Corporate Bonds , 32,445 - 32 445
Total investments § 283919 § 144,766 § 139,153
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Note 3.  Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investment Maturities
2008 Less than 1 year 1-5 years

Cash $§ 129475 § 120475 § -
U.S. Government Agencies 117,563 36,985 80,578
Fedaral National Morfgage Association and Federal Home

Loan Mortgage Corporation (Federal Pools) 203 - 203
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 310 5 305
Corporate Bonds 5836 - 5,836
Total investments $ 253387 § 166,465 § 86,922

The System’s carrying amounts of the deposits and investments at December 31, 2009 and 2008, are as follows:

2000 2008
Depasits $ 2547 § 4,867
Investments 283,919 253,387
Total deposits and investments $ 286,466 & 258,254

The difference between bank balances and financial stafement carrying amotints represent outstanding checks
payable and normal reconciling items.

Interest Rate Risk: The System’s investment policies limit investment portfolios to maturities of five years or less. Al
of the System’s investments at December 31, 2009, have effective maturity dates of less than five years.

Credit Risk: All of the System’s investments are rated AAA by Standard & Poor's except for the Collateralized
mortgage obligations which are not rated. The System’s investment policies are governed by State of Ohio statutes
that authorize the System to invest in U.S. government obligations and AAA rated corporate bonds. The
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations and Federal Mortgage pools are investments that are grandfathered from
previous statutes that aflowed such investments. These investments have an effective maturity date of less than one

year.

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the System will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The System’s investment policy does not address custodial risk.
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Note 3.  Deposits and Investments {Continued)

The Foundation: As of December 31, 2009, the fair values of the Foundation's investments were as follows:

2009 2008
Mutual funds $ 19,860 $ 16,111
Common stock 112 103
Limited Partnership Interest 1,285 AL
Premier Purchasing Partners, L.P. 892 874
Total deposits and investments $ 22,149 § 18,222

The Foundafion's investments had cumulative unrealized gains of $625 and $524 and cumulative unrealized losses
of $2,692 and $5,795 at December 31, 2003 and 2008, respectively.

Note 4, Capital Assets

The following summarizes the capital assets of the System for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Beginning Reductions/ Ending
2009 Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 9314 § - § - $ 9,314
Construction in progress 17,077 22,818 (30,356) 9,539
Total nondepreciated capital assets 26,391 22818 {30,356) 18,853
Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements 11,279 292 - 11,571
Buildings and fixed equipment 511,069 18,607 (1,296) 529,380
Equipment 252,433 23 404 (793) 275,044
Total depreciable capital assets 774,781 43,303 (2,089) 815,095
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (5,931) (567) {6,498)
Buildings and fixed equipment (308,704} (19,261) 1,102 (326,863)
Equipment {203,210 {14,637 785 {217,062}
Total accumulated depreciation (517.845) (34,465 1,887 (550,423}
Total depreciable capital assets - net 256,936 8,838 (202) 265,572
Total capital assets - het $ 283327 § 31656 §  (30558) § 284425
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Note4.  Capital Assets (Continued)

Beginning Reductions/ Ending
2008 Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land § 8377 § ) (63) $ 9314
Construction in progress 28,833 25,706 (37 462) 17,077
Total nondepreciated capital assets 38,210 25,706 (37,525) 26,391
Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements 12,547 492 {1,760) 11,279
Buildings and fixed equipment _ 497,541 31,271 (47,743) 511,069
Equipment 250,340 13,178 {11,086} 252,433
Total depreciable capital assets 760,428 44,942 {30,589 774,781
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements {7,.276) {405) 1,750 (5,931)
Buildings and fixed equipment (308,431) (18,182) 17,909 (308,704)
Equipment (200,701} (13,278) 10,769 (203,210)
Total accumulated depreciation (516,408} (31,865) 30,428 (517,845)
Total depreciable capital assets - net 244,020 13,077 (161) 256,936
Total capital assets - net $ 282230 § 38783 §  (37.686) § 283327

Total depreciation and amortization expense related to capital assets for 2009 and 2008 was $34,465 and $31,865,
respectively.

Nofe 5. Line of Credit
During 2005, the System entered into an agreement with a bank for a demand line of credit with a maximum amount

available of $20,000, The System terminated the line of credit during 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2008,
the System did not have an outstanding balance on the line of credit.
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Note 6.  Long-Term Debt and Subsequent Event

2009

Beginning
Bafance Additions

Payments/
Reductions

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

Hospitat Improvement and Refunding Revenue
Bonds Series, 1397, bear interest at rates
ranging from 3.9% to 5.8% and mature in
varying amounts through 2027. $ 3220 $ - §

Hospital Refunding Revenus Bonds, Series
1997A, bear interest at rates ranging
from 4.1% to 5.5% and mature in varying
amounts through 2619, - : 70,680 -

Hespital Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2003, bear variable interest rates and
maturing in varying amounis through 2033. 27560

Hospital Improvement and Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005, bear variable inferest rates and
maiure in varying amounis through 2035. 73,585

Hospital Facllities Revenue Bonds, Series
20084, bear inferest at 3.9% and
matures through 2014. - 8,466

Equipment obligation, GE Leasing, as
defined in the respective Jease agreement,
bears interast at 6.0% and mafures
through 2014. - 38

Equipment obligation, Simplex Grinnall, paid
in 2008. 45

Loan obfigation, Cuyahoga County Sanitary
Enginering, as defined in the respective
lcan agreement, matures through 2018. 52

(1,005) $

(4,895)

(675)

(345)

31215 §

56,765 -

26,885

73,240

8,466

37

48

1,060

5,160

700

360

783

4

204122 8,504
Unamortized discount and foss {10,898}

(6,970)
840

205,656
(10,058)

8,075

Long-term debt § 193224 § 8,504 §

{6,130} §

195,598 §

8,075
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Note 6.  Long-Term Debt and Subsequent Event(Continued)

2008
Beginning Payments/ Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Hospital improvement and Refunding Revenue

Bonds Series, 1997, bear interest at rafes

ranging from 3.8% to 5.8% and mature in

varying amounts through 2027, $ 33175 § -5 {955 § 32220 % 1,005
Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series

1997A, bear interest at rates ranging

from 4.1% to 5.5% and mature in varying

amounts through 2019, : 75,330 - {4 ,670) 70,660 4,895
Hospitat Improvement Revenue Bonds,

Series 2003, bear variable interest rates and

maturing in varving amounts through 2033. 28,205 - (645) 27,560 875
Hospital Improvement and Revenue Bends,

Series 2005, bear variable interest rates and

mature in varying amounts through 2035. 73,915 - (330) 73,585 345
Equipment obligation, Simplex Grinnell, as

defined in the respective lease agresment,

matures through 2009, 89 - {44 45 45
Loan obligation, Cuyahoga County Sanitary

Engineering, as defined in the respective

loan agreement, matures through 2018. 56 . {4 52 4

210,770 - (6,648) 204,122 6,969

Unamortized discount and loss (11,724} - 826 {10,898) -
Long-term debt $§ 199,046 § - § (5822) § 193224 §. 6989

Effective February 1, 1897, Cuyahoga County, acfing by and through the Board of Trustess of The MetroHealth
System, issued $70,000 of Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 1997 (The MetroHealth

System Project) {Series 1997). The proceeds of the Series 1997 Bonds were used to refund $20,QOO of Series 1989
Bonds; to finance the construction of various improvements and additions to The MeiroHealth Medical Center; and to

pay costs of issuance of the Series 1997 Bonds.

Effective November 1, 1997, Cuyahoga County, acting by and through the Board of Trustees of The MetroHealth
System, issued $77,525 of Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1997A (The MetroHealth System Project)

(Series 1997A). On February 15, 1998, the proceeds of the Series 1997A Bonds were used to refund $73,725 of the

remaining balance of the Series 1989 Bonds which were originally scheduled to mature on February 15, 2019, The
1997 refundings resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt

of $9,753. The unamortized difference $4,783 and $5,307 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, rels:pectiyely, reported in
the accompanying financial statements, as a reduction from long-term debt, is included as additional inferest expense

through the year 2019 using the straight-line method.
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Note6.  Long-Term Debt and Subsequent Event (Continued)

Effective September 1, 1999, Cuyahoga County, acting by and through the Board of Trustees of The MetroHealth
System, issued $56,995 of Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 (The MetroHealth System Project)
(Series 1999 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series 1992 Bonds were used to finance the construction of a 150-bed
long-term care facility and acquire, construct, renovate, equip, and improve operating rooms and other hospital
facilities. Cn July 28, 2005, a portion of the proceeds from the County’s 2005 Series Bond Issue was placed in
escrow fo advance refund the outstanding Series 1939 Bonds. The advance refunding of the Series 1999 Bonds
was completed in 2008,

Effective March 13, 2003, Cuyahoga County, acting by and through the Board of Trustees of The MetroHealth
System , issued $30,545 of Hospital Improvement Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (The
MetroHealth System Project) (Series 2003 Bonds). The proceeds of the Series 2003 Bonds were used to pay costs
of constructing and equipping the Critical Care Pavilion and an administrative building. The bonds bear interest ata
variable rate (not to exceed 10.0%) determined weekly as established by the Remarketing Agent based on current

_ market values for similar bond offerings and are due at various dates until 2033. The interest rate at December 31,
2009 and 2008, was 0.65% and 1.88%, respectively.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds, the System entered into a Reimbursement Agreement
with a bank. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, the System entered into an lrrevocable Letter of
Credit ("Letter of Credit") issued by a local bank that expired on March 22, 2008, but has been extended to March 22,
2010. Under the terms of the Letter of Credit, the Trustee will be entitled to draw amounts necessary to make
principal and interest payments. The Letter of Credit is subject to various financial covenants.

Effective March 1, 2010, the System entered into a Reimbursement Agreement with a bank. The Reimbursement
Agreement replaces the agreement expiring on March 22, 2010, Terms and conditions of the new agreement are
substantially similar to the old agreement and expires on March 16, 2013.

Effective July 1, 2005, Cuyahoga County, acting by and through the Board of Trustees of The MetroHealth, issued
$74,535 of Hospital Improvement and Refunding Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (The
MetroHealth System Project) (Series 2005 Bonds). Proceeds from the 2005 Series Bonds were used to advance
refund $56,995 of the outstanding Series 1999 Bonds which were redeemed on February 15, 2009; to pay costs of
constructing, renovating, furnishing, equipping, and improving the Old Brooklyn Campus long-term care and skilled
nursing facility; and to pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2005 Bonds. The bonds bear interest at a variable
rate (not to exceed 10.0%) determined weekly as established by the Remarketing Agent based on current market
values for similar bond offerings and are due at various dates untit 2035. The interest rate at December 31, 2009
and 2008 was 0.21% and 2.38%, respectively.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2005 Bonds, the System entered into a Reimbursement Agreement
with a bank. Under the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement, the System entered into an lrrevocable Letter of
Credit {Letter of Credit) issued by a focal bank that expires on July 16, 2010. Under the terms of the Letter of Credit,
the Trustee will be entitled to draw amounts necessary to make principal and interest payments. The Letter of Credit
is subject to various financial covenants.

Effective April 27, 2010, the System obtained a firm commitment to replace the Letter of Credit agreement expiring
on July 18, 2010. The terms and conditions of the new agreement are substantially similar fo the old agreement and
expires on July 16, 2013.

There are no amounts outstanding on the letters of credit as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.
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Note 6.  Long-Term Debt and Subsequent Event (Continued)

The July 28, 2005, bond refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $5,179. The unamortized difference (54,205 and $4,426 at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively), reported in the accompanying financial statements, as a reduction from long-term debt, is included as
an increase fo interest expense through the year 2029 using the straight line method.

Effective December 1, 2009, Cuyahoga County, acting by and through the Board of Trustees of The MefroHealth
System, issued $8,466 of Hospital Faciliies Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A. The proceeds of the Series 2009A
Bonds were used to purchase the Valentine parking garage on the System’s main campus. The Bonds bear an
interest rate of 3.9% and mature through 2014,

The Series 1997, 1997A, 1999, 2003, 2005 and 2009A Bonds were issued pursuant to a master trust bond indenture
agreement between the County, acting by and through the System’s Board of Trustees, and the bond trustee. The
Series 1997, 1997A, 1999, 2003, 2005 and 2009A Bonds are special obligations issued by the County payable solely
from the revenue derived from the operation of the System and other monies available to the System's Board of
Trustees. Accordingly, the bond proceeds and indebtedness have been recorded as assets and liabilities of the
System,

The terms of the master agreement provide for the establishment of a depreciation reserve fund and maintenance of
certain special funds, which are maintained under the control of the bond trustee, and are used for payment of
principal and interest on the bonds when due. The revenus bonds and lease obligation payment requirements for
fiscal years subsequent to December 31, 2009, are as follows:

Total Lease and Loan Obligations Total Hospital Revenue Bonds
Principal  Inferest Total Principal  Interest Total
2010 $§ 12 § 4 % 18 § 8063 § 5799 § 13862
2011 13 4 17 8,464 5,258 13,720
2012 13 3 16 8,890 4,851 13,741
2013 14 2 16 9,363 4,433 13,796
2014 8 1 g 14,051 4,002 18,053
2015-2019 25 1 26 51,755 12,377 84,132
2020-2024 - - - 39,780 4,800 44 360
2025-202% - - - 43,605 1,233 44,838
2030-2034 - - - 18,805 162 18,967
2035 - - - 2815 1 2,816
$§ 85 § 15 § 100 205571 § 42714 § 248,285
Unamortized discount {1,070)
Unamoriized difference between
reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of oid debt ‘ (8,988)
Total hospital revenue bonds — net 3 195513
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Note 6.  Long-Term Debt and Subsequent Event {Continued)

The Bond Reserve Funds, also required under the master trust bond indenture agreement, had balances as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, of $10,540 and $11,935, respectively. The cost value of Hospital Revenue Bonds
was $204,501 and $202 859 at December 31, 2008 and 2008, respectively. The fair value of Hospital Revenue
Bonds ($196,694 and $201,126 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively) is estimated using discounted cash
flow analyses based on current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

The Foundation; The Foundation's long-term obligations are comprised of the following notes payable:

Beginning  Additions/ Ending  Due Within
2009 Balance Reductions Payments  Balance  One Year

Note payable, due in semi-annual
installments plus interest at 3,96%, through
June 30, 2010, secured by its equity
interest in Premier Purchasing Partners, LP, § 137§ - $ 67) $ 70 % 70

2008

Note payable, due in semi-annual
instaliments plus interest at 3.96%, through
June 30, 2010, secured by its equity
interest in Premier Purchasing Pariners, LP. § 20 % - § 4 $ 137 % 67
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Note 7. Derivative Instruments

The System’s objectives of its derivative instruments include managing the risk of increased debt service resulting
from rising market Interest rates, the risk of decreased surplus retums resulting from falling interest rates, and the
management of the risk of an increase in the fair value of outstanding fixed rate obligations resulfing from declining
market interest rates. Consistent with its interest rate risk management objectives, the System entered into various
interest rate swap agreements with a total outstanding notional amount of $100,125 and $101,145 at December 31,

2009 and 2008, respectively.

The fair value of the swap agreements based on current settlement prices at December 31, 2009 and 2008, was ($5)
and (§17,627), respactively. The amounts due to the counterparties are included within other long-term liabilities. In
2009, the fair value increase of $17,622 and the 2008 fair value decrease of ($19,406) are inciuded in net investment
income in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. As a result of the agreements, the
System's interest expense was increased by $1,606 and $923 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The following table describes the terms of the System’s two interest rate swap agreements:

Year-End Early
Notional Effective Termination Termination  The System Counterparty
Amount Date Date Option Pays Pays

$ 73240 July 28,2008 February 1,2035  the System Fixed 3.3% 64.2% of ISDA 5 Yr. Swap Rate
$ 26885  March 13,2003  March 1, 2033 the System Fixed 3.5%  68.5% of 1ISDA 5 Yr. Swap Rate

On July 28, 2005, the System entered into a swap agreement (the Original Agreement) with an amortizing notional
amount of $74,535. The notional amount is based on the Series 2005 Bond principal repayment schedule that ends
in 2035. Per the terms of an amended agreement effective June 1, 2008, the System pays a fixed rate of 3.3% and
the counterparty pays 64.2% of the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. (ISDA) USD five year swap
rate. The original agreement previously required the counterparty to pay 70% of the 3-month USD LIBOR. In 2009,
ISDA five year interest rates ranged between 1.9% and 3.4%. The net amount is exchanged monthly between the

two parties. The System has an early termination option.

On March 13, 2003, the System entered into a swap agreement {the Original Agreement) with an amortizing national
amount of $30,545. The amortizing notional amount is based on the Series 2003 Bond principal repayment schedule
ending on March 1, 2033. Per terms of an amended agreement effective June 1, 2006, the System pays a fixed rate
of 3.5% and the counterparty pays 68.9% of the [SDA USD five year swap rate. The original agreement required the

counterparty to pay 75% of the 3-month USD LIBOR rate. Net setflement amounts are exchanged monthly. The

System has an early termination option.
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Note 8,  Other Long-Term Liabilities

Amounts Due to Third-Party Payors: The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payment
of amounts different from established rates. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period
the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods, as final settlements are determined. See Note 1,
net pafient service revenue.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave: System employees eamn vacation and sick leave at varying rates depending on
job classification and years of service. Employees can accumulate up o three years of their eamned vacation leave.
All accumulated, unused vacation fime is paid upon separation if the employee has at least one year of service with
the System. There is no limit on the amount of sick ime accrued. Upon retirement, employees with a minimum of 10
years of service have sick feave balances paid out at 50% of eligible hours at their current rate of pay. The maximum
payout is 800 hours. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the liability for accrued vacation and sick was $36,377 and
$34,971, respectively.

Note Payable: The System financed one-year general and professional liabllity policies with a note payable in 2008.
The note payable interest rate was 3.44%. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the note payable balance outstanding
was $0 and $2,599, respectively.

Other Long-Term Liabilities: Other long-term liabiliies consist of the following at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

Beginning Ending  Due Within

2009 Balance  Additions  Deletions  Balance  One Year
Amounts due third-party payors $ 27056 5 1613 § (9135 § 19534 § 4273
Accrued vacation and sick leave 34,971 5,638 (4,230) 36,377 4,360
Poliutior: remediation 4,387 199 (2,203) 2,383 2,383
Swap agreements - market valug 17,627 - (17,622) 9 -
Note payable 2,599 - {2,509) - -
- $ 86640 § 7448 § (35789} § 58209 § 11,018

Beginning Ending  Due Within

2008 Balance  Additions  Deletions  Balance  One Year
Amounts due third-party payors $ 38584 § 5811 § (17,339) § 2705 § 3857
Accrued vacation and sick leave 32,012 5,985 (3,026) 34,971 3117
Pollution remediation 4,519 190 (322) 4,387 .
Swap agreements - market value - 17,627 - 17,627 -
Note payable 3707 2,599 {3,707) 2,589 2,599

$ 78822 5§ 32212 § (24384) § 86640 B 9573
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Note 8.  Other Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Risk Management: The System is exposed to various risks of loss refated to torts; theft of or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The System is self-insured for workers
compensation and medical malpractice but maintains commercial insurance policies for property and casualfy,
automobile, aireraft {helicopter and fixed wing) as well as excess coverage for medical malpractice claims. Settled
claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

During the normal course of its operations, the System has become a defendant in various legal actions. Inthe
opinion of legal counsel and the System administration, the disposition of the pending cases will not have a material
adverse effect of the financial condition or operations of the System. However, depending on the amount and fiming
of such resolution, an unfavorable resolution of some or all of these matters could materially affect the System’s
future results of operations or cash flows in a particular year.

The System is self-insured for medical malpractice and workers' compensation claims. For the professional and
patient care liabifity, professional actuarial insurance consultants have been retained to determine funding
requirements. Amounts funded for professional and patient care have been placed in an irrevocable seff-insurance
trust account, which is being administered by a frustee.

Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the System's incident reporting systems
are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the System’s past experience, as well as other considerations
including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. The liability for estimated sefi-insured claims
includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported, undiscounted
for 2009, 2008 and 2007.

Poliution Remediation: The System is required by federal and state environmental laws to abate asbestos when it
becomes friable. The System will be engaged in several remodeling projects on its main campus in 2010 which will
require the abatement of asbestos as part of the work. The System has recorded a liability of $2.4 million at

December 31, 2009 for the estimated cost of this work. The estimate is based on the current construction estimates

fo abate all of the areas covered in the project.
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Note 8.  Other Long-Term Liabilities {Continued)

Beginning Claims Claims Ending  Due Within

2009 Balance Incurred Paid Balance  One Year
Worker's compensation $ 817 $ 2338 § (1982) § 8473 % 3,081
Self-insurance 40,224 2,359 (12,580} 30,003 10,091
Employee health insurance 1,349 18,064 {17,900) 1,513 1,513

$ 40690 § 22761 $ (32462) § 30989 § 14665

Beginning Claims Claims Ending  Due Within

2008 Balance Incurred Paid Balance One Year
Worker's compensafion $ 9152 $ 1156 § (2190 817 % 2996
Self-insurance 38,205 5418 (3,399) 40,224 11,420

Empioyes health insurance 2,802 19,060 {20,513) 1,349 1,349
$ 50150 § 25634 § (26,103) § 49690 § 15765

Beginning Claims Claims Ending  Due Within

2007 Balance Incurred Paid Balance One Year
Worker's compensation $ 9,267 § 2361 & (2476 § 9,152 § 3,007
Selt-insurance 37,180 6,400 {5,375) 38,205 13,997
Employee health insurance 1,619 18,552 {17,369) 2,802 2,802

$ 48066 $ 27313 § (26220) § 50159 § 19,896

The current portion of employee health insurance liabilities is included in other current liabilities.
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Note 8.  Operating Leases

The System has entered into operating lease agreements for a parking facility, medical space, and office space,
which expire through 2020. Contract terms range between one and fifteen years and contain rent escalation clauses
and renewal options for additional periods ranging from one to five years.

Minimum rental commitments under aperating leases extending beyond one year at December 31, 2009, are as
follows:

2010 § 1,620
2011 1,266
2012 1,018
2013 995
2014 790
2015-2019 2,948
2020 254
Total 9 8,889

Rent expense totaled $2,092 in 2009 and $2,118 in 2008. The System was leasing the Valentine parking garage on
the main campus. The lease had an original term of five years with five one-year renewal opfions. The renewai
options expired in 2009 and the System purchased the garage on December 1, 2009 for $8,466 with proceeds from
the Series 2009A bonds.

Note 10,  Benefit Plans

Pension: Employee retirement benefits are available for substantially all employees under three separate retirament
nlans administered by the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). The plans are the Traditional
Pension Plan — a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan; the Member-Directed Plan — a
defined contribution pension plan; and the Combined Plan — a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan that has elements of both a defined benefit and defined contribution plan. OPERS provides retirement,
disability, survivor, and postretirement healthcare benefits, to the Traditional and Combined Plan members however,
healthcare benefits are not statutorily guarantesd. Participants in the Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for
ancillary benefits.

The Ohio Public Employees Refirement System issues a stand-alone financial report and may be obtained by writing
to OPERS, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory
authority for employee and employer confributions. The employee contribution rate is 10.0% of covered payroll and
the System is required to contribute 14.0% of covered payroll. The System’s confributions to OPERS for the years
ending December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, were $48,406, $48,000, and $45,977, respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.
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Note 10.  Benefit Plans (Continued)

Post Retirement Benefits: OPERS maintains a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit post employment
healthcare plan, which includes a medical plan, prescription drug program, and Medicare Part B premium
reimbursement, to qualifying members of both the Traditional Pension and Combined Plans. Members of the
Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits including post empioyment healthcare coverage.

In order to qualify for post employment healthcare coverage, age-and-service retirees under the Traditional Pension
and Combined Plans must have 10 or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Healthcare coverage of disability
henefit recipients and qualified survivor benefit recipients is available. The healthcare coverage provided by OPERS
meets the definition of an Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 45,

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not mandate, OPERS to provide OPEB benefits to its eligible members
and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend benefits is provided in Chapter 145 of the Ohic Revised Code.

The Ohio Revised Code provided the statutory authority requiring public employers to fund post retirement health
care through their contributions to OPERS. A portion of each employer's contribution fo OPERS is set aside for the

funding of post retirement healthcare benefits.

The employer contribution rate is expressed as a percentage of the covered payrolf of active members. In 2009, the
employer contribution was 14.0% of covered payroll. The Ohio Revised Code currently limits the employer
confribution {0 a rate not to exceed 14.0% of covered payroll. Active members do not make contributions fo the

OPEB plan.

OPERS' Post Employment HealthCare plan was established under, and is administrated in accordance with, Internal
Revenue Code 401(h). Each year, the OPERS Retirement Board determines the portion of the employer contribution
rate that will be set aside for funding of post employment healthcare benefits. The portion of employer contributions
allocated to healthcare was 7.0% from January 1 through March 31, 2009 and 5.5% from April 1 through

December 31, 2009. The OPERS Retirement Board is also authorized to establish rules for the payment of a portion
of the health care benefits provided by the retiree or their surviving beneficiaries. Payment amounts vary depending
on the number of covered dependents and the coverage selected. The Systern's contribution for 2009, 2008, and
2007 used to fund post retirement healthcare benefits was $20,313, $24,005, and §18,200, respectively, which is
included in the System’s pension contribution of $48,406, $48,009, and $45,977 for the years ending December 31,
2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

Based on the latest OPERS actuarial review as of December 3%, 2008, OPERS had $10,700,000 in net assets
available for payment of post employment benefits. The actuarial accrued fiability for post employment benefits and
the unfunded actuarial accrued liability were $29,600,000 and $18,900,000, respectively. The number of active
contributing participants used in the 2008 actuarial valuation was 356,388. The active number of contributing
participants as of December 31, 2008, was 357,584,

Benefits are advance-funded using the entry age actuarial cost method. Assets are valued using a smoothed market
value approach with assets adjusted annually to reflect 25% of the unrealized market appreciation or depreciation,
not exceeding a 12.0% corridor, Other significant actuarial assumptions include an investment return of £.5%; no
change in the number of active employees; active employee payroll increases of 4.0% compounded annually with
additional annual increases ranging between 0.5% to 6.3%; and health care costs increasing at raies between 4.5%
and 7.0% over the next six years and 4.0% thereafter.
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Note 10.  Benefit Plans {Continued)

On September 9, 2004, the OPERS Retirement Board adopted the Health Care Preservation Plan (HCPP), effective
on January 1, 2007, In 2005, OPERS also took additional measures to improve the solvency of the Health Care
Fund by establishing a separate investment pool for health care assets. Effecfive as of January 1, 2008, 2007, and
2008, member and employer contribution rates increased, allowing additional funds to be allocated to the healthcare

plan.
Note 11.  Related Organizations

The System is the primary beneficiary of The MetroHealth Foundation, Inc. {Foundation). The Foundation is a
separafe not-for-profit entity organized for the purpose of supporting the System in the areas of research, community
health and continuing professional education. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether
Certain Organizations Are Component Units, the System has reporfed the Foundation as a component unit in the
System’s 2009 and 2008 financial statements. The System received support from the Foundation in the amount of
$4,052 and $4,439 in 2009 and 2008, respectively, which is recorded as grant revenue on the System’s statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. The outstanding receivable from the Foundation was $846 and
$1,128 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectivaly. The System also provided the Foundation in-kind support
totaling $876 and $896 in 2009 and 2008, respectively. This support covered the direct expenses of the
Development Department and indirect expenses for the use of space and support departments such as information
services and environmental services.

The System had sstablished restricted funds to differentiate resources, the use of which is restricted by donors or
grantors, from rescurces of general funds on which donors place no restrictions or that arise as a result of the
operations of the System. A review of these restricted funds is performed annually to determine that funds, refated to
completed clinical trials and certain donated money, should be transferred to the Foundation. The fotal amounts
fransferred in 2009 and 2008 were $11 and $229, respectively.

The System is a partner in the joint venture, Concordia Care. The System and another area healthcare provider
specializing in senfor care, provide services to the efderly. The System does not receive any income or distribution
from the joint venture except for receipts from regular patient billings for services rendered. Management has not
reflected on its financial statements a value for its equity interest in the net assets of this joint venture because it is
immaterial to the overall financial statements.

The System is a partner in the joint venture, CCF/MHS Renal Care Company, LTD. In connection with the
preparation of these financial statements management re-evaluated the System'’s on-going financial interest in
CCF/MHS Renal Care Company, LTD., a joint venture with The Cleveland Clinic Foundation, which provides renal
care (dialysis). Management has determined that it had a 40% equity interest in the joint venture as of December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that a material
equity interests in such a joint venture be reported as an asset in the financial statement of a reporting entity, and that
certain other information, including operating activity, be disclosed. Because CCF/MHS Renal Care Company, LTD.
does not prepare and has not made complete financial statements available since its inception in1996, management
in not able to accurately determine its equity interest in CCF/MHS Renal Care Company, LTD. or report its activities.
However, management befieves it has obtained sufficient information to conclude that the financial statements of the
System are not materially misstated without such information and that it had no material related party fransactions
with CCF/MHS Renal Care Company, LTD. that warrant disclosure.
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Note 12.  Conditional Promises fo Give

The Foundation: The Foundation received a conditional pledge of $10,000 commencing in 2005 payable over the
next 10 years at $1,000 per year. The outstanding balance of $5,415 and $6,182 at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively, is not included in these financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards Codifications
(ASC) 958, Not for Profit Entities due to the fact that the conditions of the grant have not been met.

Note 13. Commitments

As of December 31, 2009, the System had contractual commitments for the construction of various projects totaling
approximately $10,925. Projects with large contractual commitments include the helicopter replacement project of
$7.338, MHSC Phase 2 LTC & Skilled Nursing of $1,079, and the inpatient electronic medical record project for $573.
These projects are being funded with operating funds along with the System securing bond financing for the
purchase of the helicopters.

Note 14.  Subsequent Events

In January of 2010, the Series 2009B bonds were issued for $75,000. The bonds are taxable and issued under the
Build America Bond program where 35% of the interest paid is refunded to the System. The proceeds of the bonds
are to be used for the replacement of three Life Fight helicopters ($21,000) and capital improvements.

The System has an Irrevocable Letter of Credit related to the issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds that expires
March 22, 2010. The System has entered into a new Letter of Credit agreement for the Sertes 2003 Bonds that
gxpires in March 2013.

The System has an irrevocable Letter of Credit related to the issuance of the Series 2005 honds that expires July 16,
2010. The System has entered into a firm commitment to replace the Letter of Credit agreement for the Series 2005
bonds. The new agreement will expire in July 2013.

In February of 2010, the System entered into a capital lease totaling $1,100 to upgrade its main frame computer
system. The lease has a four-year term.
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